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LLC

Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2003 26

()

() 2024
2024 480,000 7,731
161.07 480,000 161.07
1,000,000 1,000,000 6,107
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2024

EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40

Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
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TOPIX
JPX JPX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
3.3
0.015
15,000
0.65 0.30 0.35
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2024

17,454,839.36 32.03
13,289,666.08 2439
6,355,991.02 11.66
2,803,805.39 5.15
2,746,089.83 5.04
2,441,085.06 4.48
2,197,015.95 4.03
1,538,379.20 2.82
1,522,592.33 2.79
1,506,087.05 2.76
863,830.48 1.59
198,139.78 0.36
92,974.31 0.17
53,010,495.84 97.29
1,477,982.60 2.71

54,488,478.44
8,776,459,222 100.00

2024

NGG FINANCE PLC 2073
/GBP/ REGD V/R 5.625 18 2,378,000 | 156.19| 3,714,240.58|125.62| 2,987,242.04 5.48
REG S SER GBP

ELECTRICITE DE

FRANCE SA /GBP/ 2172
6 2,100,000 | 148.78 | 3,124,465.59|123.13| 2,585,818.37 4.75

REGD V/R /PERP/ 29
EMTN
ORANGE SA /EUR/ 173
REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.375 18 2,300,000 105.36 | 2,423,381.43|110.94| 2,551,695.23 4.68
REG S EMTN
TOTALENERGIES SE
/EUR/ REGD V/R 2173

1.625 2,589,000 91.08| 2,358,060.31| 97.13| 2,514,626.88 4.61
/PERP/ REG S 25

EMTN SER NC7

AUSNET SERVICES

HOLDINGS /EUR/ 2081

1.625 2,452,000 81.28| 1,992,894.48| 99.55| 2,441,085.06 4.48
REGD V/R REG S 11
EMTN
VODAFONE GROUP 2081
PLC REGD V/R SER 4.125 2,860,000 79.88| 2,284,577.85| 85.14| 2,434,976.54 4.47
NC10
BP CAPITAL
MARKETS PLC 2173

3.625 2,276,000 112.65| 2,563,863.99|102.62| 2,335,632.58 4.29
/EUR/ REGD V/R 22

/PERP/ REG S
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SOUTHERN CO 2081
JEUR/ REGD V/R 1.875 15 2,329,000 | 102.87| 2,395,803.16| 95.41| 2,222,073.23| 4.08
VATTENFALL AB
/GBP/ REGD V/R 6.875 208i7 1,500,000 126.15| 1,892,324.93|128.75| 1,931,223.37 3.54
REG S
BRITISH

10 | TELECOMMUNICATIO 4.25 1i08;3 2,018,000 89.26| 1,801,356.08| 94.38| 1,904,520.39 3.50
REGD V/R REG S

11 ENBRIDGE INC 5.5 2077 1,809,000| 102.69| 1,857,589.42| 94.24| 1,704,722.91 3.13
REGD V/R 15
VOLKSWAGEN INTL

12 FIN NV 7EUR/ 7.5 2172 1,300,000 108.29 | 1,407,769.99|115.77| 1,504,977.45| 2.76
REGD V/R /PERP/
REG S SER PNC5
ELIA GROUP SA/NV

13 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 5.85 217i5 1,300,000| 105.54| 1,372,069.04|110.39| 1,435,073.22 2.63
/PERP/ REG S
IBERDROLA
FINANZAS SAU

14 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 4.871 217?6 1,300,000 108.73| 1,413,431.65]108.78| 1,414,174.10| 2.60
/PERP/ REG S
EMTN
ARKEMA /EUR/

15 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 2.75 217i7 1,300,000 108.12| 1,405,592.67|106.64| 1,386,308.60| 2.54
REG S EMTN
VODAFONE GROUP

16 |PLC /EUR/ REGD 6.5 20820 1,200,000| 106.95| 1,283,457.65|115.08| 1,380,949.85| 2.53
V/R REG S EMTN
SSE PLC /EUR/

17 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 4 21721 1,282,000 102.26 1,310,913.24|104.74| 1,342,780.31 2.46
REG S
VOLKSWAGEN INTL

18 FIN NV /EUR 3.875 217 1,300,000 | 112.55| 1,463,207.22]103.29| 1,342,768.75| 2.46
REGD V/R /PERP/ 14
REG S
CENTRICA PLC

19 |/GBP/ REGD V/R 6.5 20521 1,000,000 | 125.89| 1,258,899.97|127.67| 1,276,735.91 2.34
REG S
ENGIE SA /EUR/

20 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.125 217?4 1,000,000 | 108.66 | 1,086,649.98|106.41| 1,064,084.82 1.95
REG S SER
ARKEMA /EUR/

21 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 1.5 21721 1,000,000| 94.72 947,157.86 | 101.85| 1,018,537.59 1.87
REG S
ENBW ENERGIE

22 |BADEN - WU /EUR/ 5.25 208:3 900,000 | 108.76 978,884.98 | 110.03 990,256.79 1.82
REGD V/R REG S
NGG FINANCE PLC

23 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 2.125 2082 1,002,000| 80.64 808,027.99| 98.67 988,701.51 1.81
REG S
ELM FOR

24 FIRNENICH INTERN 3.75 2172 877,000 | 101.50 890,117.88] 105.78 927,715.11 1.70
/EUR/ REGD V/R
/PERP/ REG S

25 ORSTED A/ JEUR/ 5.125 3024 800,000 | 108.07 864,569.89 | 107.98 863,830.48 1.59
REGD V/R REG S 14
BRITISH

26 TELECOMIUNICATIO 8.375 2083 600,000 | 125.38 752,287.92| 134.34 806,038.18 1.48
/GBP/ REGD V/R 12 20
REG S EMTN
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VEOLIA
ENVIRONNEMENT SA 2173
27 5.993 700,000 | 106.90 748,334.99 | 111.44 780,094.44 1.43
/EUR/ REGD V/R 22
/PERP/ REG S
BP CAPITAL
MARKETS PLC 2173
28 3.25 693,000 | 104.27 722,599.23| 104.68 725,426.95 1.33
/EUR/ REGD V/R 22
/PERP/ REG S
KONINKL1JKA
FRIESLAND /EUR/ 2172
29 2.85 696,000 | 121.53 845,836.36 | 102.38 712,594.56 1.31
REGD V/R /PERP/ 12 10
REG S
SSE PLC /EUR/ 2172
30 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 3.125 1 677,000 99.11 671,008.10 102.67 695,049.81 1.28
REG S
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2023 2024
2018 28 62,318,176.00 10,037,588,608 10.44 1,682
2019 28 47,211,429.00 7,604,344 ,869 10.02 1,614
2020 29 29,189,271.00 4,701,515,880 10.61 1,709
2021 28 25,004,453.00 4,027,467,245 10.62 1,711
2022 28 16,556,208.00 2,666,708,423 9.87 1,590
2023 28 16,402,183.00 2,641,899,616 9.09 1,464
2024 29 25,772,179.00 4,151,124,872 9.56 1,540
2023 18,756,832.17 3,021,162,958 9.15 1,474
18,792,088.00 3,026,841,614 9.10 1,466
19,259,505.86 3,102,128,609 9.06 1,459
10 21,055,015.24 3,391,331,305 9.03 1,454
11 22,923,727.21 3,692,324,742 9.27 1,493
12 24,725,469.50 3,982,531,372 9.54 1,537
2024 25,702,505.08 4,139,902,493 9.60 1,546
25,772,179.00 4,151,124,872 9.56 1,540
27,123,311.60 4,368,751,799 9.63 1,551
27,683,269.77 4,458,944,262 9.59 1,545
29,119,904.85 4,690,343,074 9.64 1,553
30,451,354.21 4,904,799,623 9.65 1,554
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2020 29 5,208,004,048 10,031
2021 28 4,213,414,408 9,957
2022 28 3,088,746,795 9,253
2023 28 4,962,964 ,239 8,302
2024 29 4,386,108,087 8,249
2023 4,826,491,087 8,174
4,833,750,440 8,088

4,720,219,169 8,019

10 4,615,249,151 7,950

11 4,655,272,202 8,120

12 4,715,619,634 8,314

2024 4,805,261,916 8,325
4,386,108,087 8,249

4,246,995,399 8,269

3,987,669,118 8,194

3,928,832,958 8,201

3,748,320,719 8,171
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0.27 43 225
0.36 58 300
0.36 58 300
0.36 58 300
0.36 58 300
0.36 58 300
0.36 58 300
2024 0.03 5 25
0.03 5 25
0.03 5 25
0.03 5 25
2.55 411 2,125
7.10 5.38
-0.57 -3.28
9.48 6.78
3.49 2.25
-3.67 -4.06
-4.26 -7.04
9.13 2.98
100x
10.00
10,000

40/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EHES CKRILIS ) 20246 B268HIBTE

AR - FEERE NS

=
e {RER01 7E2R2E) 2024560 28H) PR i
PRRINIBFZ fePENFRﬁaHiuIF;u—ﬁasﬁ:lai W o el | COEREL R 9.65HKEIL
I50) by o R 30.458 %I
-1 200 s A [ R R B )2
. TETT.
150 S ICE T R R . 5 s (RS 1)

ERPELCBDELTEH LR ED B D

Hx) THEC LT BRI,
50
7 - : i 0
2017528 2019%28 2021428 2023528
SEOEE @SR, 10%) o
2024525 2024535 2024548 2024555 2024568 || @a12nBE | BaRes
0.034E 0.03%F1 D.03FFI 0.03 % 1L 003%EIL | 036%EIL 255 %FIL
FELEEEOIKR P
<PPERISRLLE SR> <FE{RIMERELE > <ERERMEA HISHE>  <BRBIEA L {SEE>
N1 7UuFa% | 97.3%] [AGLE 11.5%| [F%UR 31.9%] [Z=o0 54.7%
T IR 0.0%| [BBB 50.6%| |T752% 243%| |[1EUREE 19.7%
WEE 27%| [EB 16.2%| (3527 100%| |EEL 15.6%
BL T 00%| [Zor—72 5.2%
FAUR ©1%

<$AA L1 05%0> ($8 A 851528 - 55851®)

HiTlEs & - i BEE =iz | ZEO=)E8 | EE
1 |NGG FINANCE PLC FED %3 S 625% | 2025/ 6 /18 | 5.4%
2 |ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE SA 2523 HFEFEE | 6,000% | 2026/ 1 /20 | 4.8%
3 |ORANGE sA FEPr BE 5 375% | 2030/ 1/18 | 47%
4 |TOTALENERGIES SE PEET IFILF— | 1625% | 2027/10/25 | 4.6%
S [AUSNET SERVICES HOLDINGS PTY LTD T—ASU7 %3] 1625% | 2026/ 9 /11 | 4.5%
& | VODAFONE GROUP FLC TFUR BE 4125% | 2031/ 4/4 | 4.4%
7 |EP CAPITAL MARKETS PLC FEI THILE— | 3.625% | 2029/ 3 /22 | 4.2%
8 |SOUTHERN ELECTRIC GENERATING CO FAR B 1.875% | 202776 /15 | 4.1%
S |[VATTENFALL AB eI DR ® | 6.875% | 2028/ 5 /17 | 3.7%
10 | BRITISH TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLC TEUZR, BE 4.250% | 2026/11/23 | 3.5%

i HHAR S R S R A e T,

::Hg!-—_fgljmﬁlj.;—ﬁ‘ B OIS AR EEL TV A0S LM G S E RS E N TS 0TS, AR REECREER
ST RUE A,

2 e Yo o [ 20 o AT - PR =T CAUA S UE MR T T SR EE B0 1 5 () OEEsEil=sn
FEAR (BEREETECEUBR NIRRT ) SRR I e BT,

FHRIRFVOHERS

%) 20

0k 16, 5% 11.1%

[

10} e AT o I 1%
.:| ek e R il ' G S - - - el
c e B |
&10F L6, 3% AL 3%
&30 "'

A.30

J0MGEE JOIGE IOTTE JOIRE 0VGE NDOE JODNE JRIE J023E J004E
w7 AR MR, s (RS i) TR EEL DAL T ILTEUR Y,
B TrMBILRAYFT ISR A,
201 FER, EERNSIO TEFETOMEETTY.
% 2024412, 2024 F6RFETOMERTYT,
2O RENE S < F T ER TS O AR =R T Se 0 TR EE T v

41/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ERAERFEI5R) 202456 H28 BIRE

iR E @i - A ERTOES &
oo (BERAR0 FEZE2IA) ~ 2024868 2808) GERT
B O S MR RR G (e — RABER N — RAESEEN | 2o ) TR =722 1~ CORSRRORRREIOES 8171H
o H!m .................... 3?‘4.5“!'.'[3
o 3¢ R O (o R TSR PR D1 D )
10000 THETT.
i FHEEHERESEES. B K36
FLNG [ EE R BOELT I HLI B DB
THICLLCBRERI
BLOO0 e
7.000 i i i o
2017528 20152 H 2021828 023EH
HABEDER HsIE. 101Y) .
202428 2024538 2024548 2024558 2024568 B 12088 HERSEH
25M 25M 251 25M 250 300H 2,125
EEGAEOIRR -
<HEEERItERELEEE > <tEfTRIMSRELL> <@ HEEEHAA LUSHE> < ERFHEA_LAISEE>
N T REES 97.3% ALLE 11.5% AEUZ 31.9% =0 &}, 7%
£ DithsEE 0.0% BEB 659.6% SRS, 24.3% A FUIRE 19.7%
RS 27% BB 16.2% s 10.0% *E 15.5%
BT 0.0% AT 5.2%
FALUR 5. 1%
<HAL{I1 08348> (RHASR1WE - 55384R)
ik [ =S g—ttz | EEo3-E | B%
1 |NGG FINANCE PLC A FUZ Bh 5.625% | 2025/ 6 /18 [ 5.4%
2 |ELECTRICITE DE FRAMCE 54 IS HFFREE | 6000% | 2026/ 1 /29 | 4.8%
3 | CRANGE 5A 7S H{E 5.375% | 203071 /18 | 47%
4 |TOTALEMERGIES SE FSA IxllFE— 1.625% | 2027/10/25 | 456%
E |AUSMET SERVICES HOLDIMGS PTY LTD F—ARSUF B/ 1.625% | 2026/ 2 /11 | 45%
& |VCDAFCNE GROUP PLC e e 4.125% | 2031/ 4/ 4 | 44%
7 |BP CAPITAL MAREETS PLC AFUT I — 3.625% | 2029/ 3 /22 | 4.2%
& |SOUTHERM ELECTRIC GEMERATING CO FrUH BN 1.875% | 2027/ 6 /15 | 4.1%
9 |VATTEMFALL AB AOT=—F EwiE® | 6.875% | 2028/5 /17 | 3.7%
10 | BRITISH TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLC e s 4.250% | 2026/11/23 | 3.5%

R A ERRE TR R T T,

?H%FI Rttt F—s B OO T Ee @R EL TV EESEESLS T ELEREH SN ETEL RO EEL A E O RBIEC & 2EE
HHTREBUED A,

B e [t o T T2 o AR b FEA =2 AR MET T R EHE (BT 81 5 ) ORERETSD
TERE (HERELTS LR oL BT, SRR IS BUET,

FRNSROHEES

(%) 30
20F & 13.3%

0 el

1.;': ' B ._|1_II lll_]g"_ﬁ. 04% 495 T

alQrF ABEX I l

&30 S133%

&30

IE JOIGE FNMTE OIOIBE II0E 0I0E PIE OME J0IRE  FOME
o 7 S FOE MR T o A (RS ) SR L o DL THNL TELERE T,
W IR RAYFT =012 RED L
#2017 FER. BETFR IS FETETONEETY.
# 2024412, 2024FRFATORERETT .
war RS < EFTREEOENTEY RO ANEEREETZEOTIEEVERA

42/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
224,384 2,186,392 2,751,993
(224,384) (2,186,392) (2,751,993)
201,749 599,424 2,354,318
(201,749) (599, 424) (2,354,318)
161,145 837,800 1,677,663
(161,145) (837,800) (1,677,663)
387,501 260,401 1,804,763
(387,501) (260,401) (1,804,763)
1,061,557 169,650 2,696,670
(1,061,557) (169, 650) (2.,696,670)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
32,615 254,925 519,204
(32,615) (254,925) (519,204)
10,045 106,107 423,142
(10,045) (106,107) (423,142)
10,828 100,156 333,814
(10,828) (100, 156) (333,814)
308,893 44,874 597,833
(308,893) (44,874) (597,833)
58,440 124,569 531,704
(58, 440) (124,569) (531,704)
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CIMA
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JSDA

0.001 0.001
0.01 0.01
0.001 0.001
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10
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a
AEOI
AEOI
b
AECI
AEOI
AEOI
c AEOI
AEOI
AEOI
AEOI AEOI

AEOI
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AEOI 1986 1471 1474
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2024 29
NB
2024 29
54,199,097 54,452,255 8,770,625
144,516 23,277
510,364 512,686 82,578
99,910 16,093
1,017,492 163,887
633,326 102,010
64,331 10,362
56,924,516 9,168,832
246,741 39,743
1,443,769 232,548
50,776 8,178
23,878 3,846
21,331 3,436
20,201 3,254
12,002 1,933
11,394 1,835
17,053 2,747
1,847,145 297,520
55,077,371 8,871,312
70,443,664 11,346,361
(15,366,293) (2,475,049)
55,077,371 8,871,312
4,386,108,087
531,704 8,249
25,772,179
2,696,670 9.56 1,540
161.07
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NB
2024 29
1,350 2,220,076 357,588
229 37
2,220,305 357,625
351,471 56,611
351,471 56,611
135,398 21,809
27,036 4,355
26,824 4,321
15,039 2,422
10,025 1,615
21,142 3,405
938,406 151,149
1,281,899 206,475
(1,232,937) (198,589)
(6,090, 695) (981,028)
(7.323,632) (1,179,617)
5,446,561 877,278
237,105 38,191
5,683,666 915,468
(1,639,966) (264,149)
(358,067) (57,674)
161.07
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2024 29
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1,281,899 206,475
(7,323,632) (1,179,617)
5,683,666 915,468

(358,067) (57,674)
(1,240,396) (199,791)

(795,179) (128,079)
(2,035,575) (327,870)
3,384,598 545,157
9,785,058 1,576,079
(6,939,188) (1,117,695)
(1,596,423) (257,136)
4,634,045 746,406
2,240,403 360,862
52,836,968 8,510,450
55,077,371 8,871,312
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29

(358,067) (57,674)
(25,216,737) (4,061,660)
23,913,614 3,851,766

15,482 2,494
1,232,937 198,589
(5,446,561) (877,278)

(248,010) (39,947)
(193,406) (31,152)
(38,519) (6,204)
(992) (160)

548 88

7,117 1,146
2,058 331
20,201 3,254
(159) (26)

1,227 198
4,777 769
(6,304,490) (1,015,464)
14,794,750 2,382,990
(8,346,757) (1,344,412)
(2,035,575) (327,870)
4,412,418 710,708
(1,892,072) (304,756)
2,549,274 410,612
657,202 105,856
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NB
2024 29
2024 29 2024 29
8,302 9.09 1,464
(@) 194 0.22 35
53 0.61 98
247 0.83 134
(300) (0.36) (58)
8,249 9.56 1,540
3.08 9.37
4,386,108 25,772 4,151,096
1.74 1.74
2.38 2.38
@
161.07
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NB
2024 29
(@D)
98.9
4.4
4.4
AusNet Services Holdings Pty Ltd.
2,452,000 1.63% due 03/11/81 4.4 2,424,112
2,424,112
2,424,112
2.8
2.8
Elia Group S.A.
1,300,000 5.85% due 03/15/28(2 2.6 1,439,841
Syensqo S.A.
100,000 2.50% due 12/02/25(2) 0.2 103,210
1,543,051
1,543,051
3.9
3.9
Enbridge, Inc.
1,809,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 3.0 1,681,960
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.6 350,250
Rogers Communications, Inc.
149,000 5.25% due 03/15/82 0.3 142,259
2,174,469
2,174,469
1.8
1.8
Orsted AS
1,025,000 1.75% due 12/09/19 1.8 991,462
991,462
991,462
22.5
22.5
Arkema S.A.
1,000,000 1.50% due 10/21/25(1 1.9 1,017,437
1,300,000 2.75% due 06/17/24(D) 2.5 1,390,603
Electricite de France S.A.
400,000 3.38% due 06/15/30(1 0.7 383,211
100,000 5.88% due 01/22/29(1) 0.2 119,380
2,100,000 6.00% due 01/29/26(1 4.7 2,590,198
Engie S.A.
100,000 1.63% due 04/08/25(D) 0.2 104,022
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(@D)
Orange S.A.
400,000 1.75% due 07/15/28(1) 0.7 382,540
2,300,000 5.38% due 01/18/30(D 4.7 2,578,174
TotalEnergies SE
2,589,000 1.63% due 10/25/27(1 4.6 2,507,509
Veolia Environnement S.A.
500,000 2.25% due 01/20/26(1) 0.9 511,992
700,000 5.99% due 11/22/28(1) 1.4 791,668
12,376,734
12,376,734
11.2
11.2
Bayer AG
1,500,000 6.63% due 09/25/83 2.9 1,602,837
800,000 7.00% due 09/25/83 1.6 867,226
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.50% due 04/23/75 0.2 103,345
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
2,500,000 1.38% due 08/31/81 4.2 2,323,241
900,000 5.25% due 01/23/84 1.8 983,674
Merck KGaA
300,000 1.63% due 09/09/80 0.5 302,732
6,183,055
6,183,055
0.4
0.4
ENI SpA
100,000 2.00% due 02/11/27(D) 0.2 99,017
Terna - Rete Elettrica Nazionale
100,000 2.38% due 11/09/27(D) 0.2 98,639
197,656
197,656
0.2
0.2
Holcim Finance Luxembourg S.A.
131,000 3.00% due 04/05/24(1) 0.2 140,351
140,351
140,351
11.3
11.3
ELM BV for Firmenich International S.A.
877,000 3.75% due 09/03/25(1) 1.7 931,251
Iberdrola International BV
1,100,000 1.87% due 01/28/26(1 2.1 1,126,292
Koninklijke FrieslandCampina NV
696,000 2.85% due 09/10/25(1) 1.3 697,630
Stedin Holding NV
300,000 1.50% due 12/31/26(1) 0.5 293,797
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 2.37% due 07/22/25(D) 0.2 104,454
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(@)
Volkswagen International Finance NV
1,300,000 3.88% due 06/14/27(1) 2.4 1,325,901
1,300,000 7.50% due 09/06/28(1) 2.7 1,508,788
200,000 7.88% due 09/06/32(1) 0.4 240,521
6,228,634
6,228,634
0.2
0.2
EDP - Energias de Portugal S.A.
100,000 1.88% due 03/14/82 0.2 90,868
90,868
90,868
0.2
0.2
Redeia Corp. S.A.
100,000 4.63% due 05/07/28(1) 0.2 110,102
110,102
110,102
5.0
5.0
Telia Co. AB
267,000 1.38% due 05/11/81 0.5 269,792
Vattenfall AB
500,000 2.50% due 06/29/83 1.0 537,009
1,500,000 6.88% due 08/17/83 3.5 1,926,286
2,733,087
2,733,087
30.0
30.0
BP Capital Markets PLC
693,000 3.25% due 03/22/26(1) 1.3 723,454
2,276,000 3.63% due 03/22/29(1) 4.2 2,300,023
British Telecommunications PLC
200,000 1.87% due 08/18/80(1) 0.4 206,691
2,018,000 4.25% due 11/23/81(1) 3.4 1,888,735
600,000 8.38% due 12/20/83 1.5 798,898
NGG Finance PLC
1,002,000 2.13% due 09/05/82 1.8 989,437
2,378,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 5.4 2,965,698
SSE PLC
677,000 3.13% due 04/14/27(1) 1.3 696,131
303,000 3.74% due 01/14/26(1) 0.7 363,157
1,282,000 4.00% due 01/21/28(1) 2.4 1,342,850
Vodafone Group PLC
2,860,000 4.13% due 06/04/81 4.4 2,448,605
400,000 6.25% due 10/03/78 0.7 397,960
1,200,000 6.50% due 08/30/84 2.5 1,380,261
16,501,900
16,501,900
)

62/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
ooooodooodooooooodd

5.0
5.0
Southern Co.
2,329,000 1.88% due 09/15/81 4.0 2,180,587
600,000 4.00% due 01/15/51 1.0 576,187
2,756,774
2,756,774
54,199,097 54,452,255
54,199,097 98.9 54,452,255
1.1 625,116
100.0 55,077,371
(8,871,312,147 )
@
161.07
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Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada
Goldman Sachs
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

142,545

1,343,600

214,023

12,240

15,500
209,651

236,111

341,670

39,394,587

9,497,486

147,294

874,056

210,291

500,874

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024
2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

64/195

(153,985)

(1,476,674)

(230,225)

(15,500)

(12,244)
(193,985)

(217,609)

(310,904)

(35,844,442)

(7,468,890)

(135,972)

(800, 000)

(165,262)

(71,290,762)

566 566
(19,910)  (19,910)

1,824 1,824
12) 12)

12 12
(673) (673)

174 174
4,580 4,580
531,156 531,156
47,083 47,083
(131) (131)

6,676 6,676
1,185 1,185
21,014 21,014
614,270  (20,726) 593,544
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Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

12,965,618

19,153,517

20,309,155

4,710,998,419

75,000,000

10,763,210

2,180,454

1,377,291

1,430,458

10,000,000

79,344
137,982

120,664

91,215

25,368

26,846

780,723

98,573

1,833,468

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024
2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

2024

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18
18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

(90,759) (3.488)  (3.,488)
(131,347) (2,425)  (2,425)
(138,987) (2,286)  (2,286)

(33,098,474) (1,388,650) (1,388, 650)

(528,504) (23,678)  (23,678)
(73,771) (1,324)  (1,324)
(14,896) (219) (219)

(9,415) (144) (144)
(9,625) 3 3
(67,166) 144 144
(11,830,737) (289) (289)
(20,188,651) 2,092 2,092
(17,099,370) 5,567 5,567
(13,619,864) (460) (460)
(3,780,692) (80) (80)
(3,930,070) 393 393
(115,922,153) 449 449
(14,406,124) 1,605 1,605
(271,083,000) 8,803 8,803

19,056 (1,423,043) (1,403,987)
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NB

LLC

NB

2012 10 15

UFJ

2024

2021

29

2016 12 16

2017 22
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CIMA



GAAP

946

GAAP

FASB

12
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ASC

GAAP
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2024 29
2024 29
54,452,255 54,452,255
633,326 633,326
55,085,581 55,085,581
2024 29
(1,443,769) (1,443,769)
(1,443,769) (1,443,769)
2024 29
FASB ASC 740

50
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56 7,572,002 70 1,273,943
30
9,676,215 84 4,736,897
)
)
) ) )
)
FX
2023 28 36,434,785 16,402,183 52,836,968
3,384,598 9,785,058 13,169,656
(6,939,188)  (1,596,423)  (8,535,611)
(1,240,396) (795,179)  (2,035,575)
(2,334,607) 1,976,540 (358,067)
2024 29 29,305,192 25,772,179 55,077,371
2023 28 597,833 1,804,763 2,402,596
58,440 1,061,557 1,119,997
(124,569) (169, 650) (294,219)
2024 29 531,704 2,696,670 3,228,374
2024 29 55.12 9.56

69/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10.00

10,000
10

2024 29
2024 29 246,741

2017 22

10
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2024 29 MNA
MNA
(&

Royal Bank of Canada 2,670 (2,670)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 590,384 (22,196) 568,188

Westpac Banking Corporation 40,272 (40,272)
633,326 (65,138) 568,188

2024 29 MNA
MNA
(&)

Goldman Sachs 962 962
Royal Bank of Canada 5,925 (2,670) 3,255

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 22,196 (22,196)
Westpac Banking Corporation 1,414,686 (40,272) 1,374,414
1,443,769 (65,138) 1,378,631

@

2024 29
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633,326 (1,443,769)

2024 29

(6,010,840) 248,010
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0.65
0.30 0.35
2024 29 351,471
2024 29 23,878
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
2024 29
135,398 2024 29 11,394
0.015
15,000 2024 29
15,039 2024 29 21,331
0.05
2024 29 27,036 2024
29 12,002
0.65
2024 29 351,471 2024
29 50,776
10
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
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LIBOR

LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR

1970
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2024 29
12
13

2024
2024 2024 86,577
3,180,183 246,407
2024 2024 3,550,434
440,080 254,065
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 29, 2024

[Expressed in Unibed States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Assets:

Irvastmants b securities, ot velue [cost of USD 54,193,087

Cath

Ferelgn curmency, ot valos [cost of LISD 510.364)
Recetvable: for Units lsssed

Inrterest receivabie

Unrealized appreciation on forwerd forsign aemency exchangs contracts
Other assets

Total essets

UnibilBthes:
Peyable for Unfs redeemed

Unrealieed depreciation on fonwand forsign cumency eachange mmrads
Accroed danributors s

Mt Assets Atiribuiable to Unitholder

Anshysis of Net Atdat:

Pl I capitad
Cumulstve net esmings and distributions
et Assets Attribuiabie to Unitholder

Wt At Value per Uk
P Class 597 4, 386, 108,087 + 531, 704 Units cutstanding)
{USD Chass USD 35,772,179+ LES6 50 Urits outstandingy

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial satements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 295, 2024

[Expressed in Unibed States Dollar)

It mer Incceme:

imterest (net of withholding tmees. of US0 1,350} s L 20078

Miscelanecus Income 29
Total levestmint Incomae 2,230,305

Faparada:

Distritutor's fees 151471

Management loal 351,47

Curstod b an sub-administrators fees ELE

igent company’s fees 27,086

Professional fees 26,824

Trastee fees 15,089

Tranader apeen feed 10,625

Ot Expr 21,142
Tozal Exponses 938,406

Nt | ervischrit: st LIRSS

Rasitzad gadr{lassrs) aad changs in unraalized spprecnion/jdapracirton):
Reakaed

e RSB ES i Seuritie (L232,937)
Net realised kases {7,333 532}
Changs in unreaiized apprecistion/fdepreciation)
Ieestnents insecurities 5,445,561
Forelge cumency tranilathons and foreand foreign cumency exchaengs comtracts 137,105
Net change In unreaslined apprecation 5,683,566
Mt realined and change in unnedlzed losses and appreciatian {1,639, 566)
Mot decruase in el aue reulisag from opsation. LsD {858,067)

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial sataments,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2024
(Expressed in Unibed States Dollar)

Increese (Decreass] In Mot Assrts from:
Oparwidsng:
Het irvestrment inoome uso 1,280,895
et realined hosses (7,323 632}
et churgs in unrealleed sppreciation 5,683 /666
Nt decreans s rart ssaets resulting from epemation {358,067}
Distrikestions to U nithalden
P Class (L240,736)
S0 Ches (795,179)
Tortl Dimributiong {2,035 575}
Capits] Tramsactions:
LInkts lwed
JPY Clas {58,480 Veiis) 3,384,508
USD il 1,061, 557 Uinitsh 4, 7H8, 058
Linfts redesmed
JFY Class [ 124,569 WAniks) {6,939, 158}
S Class (165,650 Unis) — Loe6azn)
Wt increas in net saets resulting from capisa trassactions A, 534,045
Total Increass in Met Assats 2,240,403
et Assartec
Buglewring of yesr 52,836,968
Ervd of yotar R !.’EEH

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial sataments,

78/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended February 25, 2024

(Expressed in Unibed States Dollar)
Caah iws from opersting scthvithe:
Wt decreass in net Essrts resulting from opemations LsSD {358,067)
Adjusiments to reconcle the net decrosss n Fet sty resulting from openitions to net cesh used In

operating acthities
Purchass of Irvartmants. 125,216,737}
Proceeds from e and maturtty of investments 13,513,614
Net amorization snd |soretion] of premiams 35d decounts oh corponste delt sbligatiens and shor term

T T 15,482
Realzed losies o0 Wrviltmrs in securites 1282937
Changs in unreslined apgrecietion on inertmeTs 5,446,551}
Change in unresiined appreciation on forwand forelgn cumency chengs comrads {248,010)
Chargs In ety and Rabilifles relsfed to operation:
crease Ininterest necebealkis 153, 408}
ncrease In oLher smets (38,519)
Cacreass in accrusd Custodian and sub-adminisrator’s feas [+ ]
Incrid i Stcrued Spent com pany'l fees S48
Incresse In sccrusd dhtributor's fees 77
Incremse Inacorued maragement fees 20058
Incremee In pocrued professlonsl fees 0,201
Dwscrease In accrusd regisration fee {1549)
Increase in accrued brocies fees 1,227
Increase In scorusd olher expe rees ATTT
[Nt ciih U I OparYTIng Botivithad {6304 A1)
Cesh fiows provided by fnancing scifeiios:
Proceeds from Units baoed 14,754, 750
Paymerets on Units redeamed (8,346,757}
Distritutions pald to Unitholder
et cash provided by finanding activities 4,412 418
et decrease In cash and forelgn cumency {1 892,00
Cash 2o forsign oarrency ot begioring of pear 1,549,274
Canh and farsign currmsty 51 end of yaar USD 51207

Thi accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

EPY Class. USO Class

[For tha Yaur Ended For ta Yaar Ended

Februsry 29, 2024 Fabnasry 28, 2O
heet Asset Wal ue, begining of year F lad 830F usp 08
et investreent Income® 134 [[¥>]
Wit realleed and unrsslined s ] [
Mot increase i net sssets resulting from operations 247 083
Lis distributions. {300 (036
Wt Axzet Valus, end of year Fad B3 USD .56
Total retum 1.06% 93T
Rutins/Supplemental data:
Wit sEsirts end of year (000) AP 4385908 USD 28,77
Rutic of expenme 0 Sverage et st 1.74% LN
Ratho of pert irvestment: incomes to average net assets L3E% L%

* Calgulated using sversge Uinits cutstending for the year,

Tha accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal statements.

80/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

PORTOUO OF INVESTMENTS
February 25, 2024
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prircipal % of Met
Currency _Ameurt___Security DescripBon Amerts Fals Valwe
FUOED INCOME SECURTIED [B8U)
MLRSTRALEA (L)
CORPORATE BN I NOTES [44%)
Aurshiet Sanvices Holdings Py L
L] 21A52,000 LE3% due 03/11,81 L 1571 1424192
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & HOTES T44.111
TOTAL MUISTRALLY LA24.142
BELGIUIM (%]
CIORPORATE BN I NOTES [2.85)
B Group S,
L1 10 SN due 03149355 L6 1430441
Symgu S8
7] 100,000 L5305 dus 100,255 ok A0RII0
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 1543 051
TOTAL BEFLEILIM 1880401
CAMADA |3.9%]
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (3.9
Enbridge, Inc
1] 1,805,000 5.50% due 071577 1,681 5460
uso 360,000 B.00% due 011577 L] 350255
Rogers Communications, inc.
ush 145,000 5255 due 03/15/52 a3 147 258
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & MOTLS 374489
TOTAL CAMADA 2,174,409
DUMMLARE [1. )
CORPORATE BOWCES & NOTES (18]
Orated AS
ELR 1,025,000 1755 due 12/0919 1B S AER
TOTAL CORPORATT BONDS & NOTTS FLALD
TOTAL DENMARE =]
FRAMNCE [12.5%)
CORPORATE BN & MOTES (2LE%)
Arkgma b4
[ 1000000 1.50% dup 102125 18 Loir AT
0] 1,500,000 LT3 duw D617 4= 1.5 1L150u600
Bhartricity de Frangs S.a
L] 00,000 B3N dug D6/1500 ar 33
Gap 00,000 S AR dup DLALMTES oz 140,380
GEF 1,100,000 B0 due D1/29/280% ar 2500198
Erpe i
L] ettt t] LETH due D082 50 G2 ple TR
Orangs i
[0 ] 400,000 L75% due 07/ 15285 ar AR
L1F.] 1,300,000 5385 due 01283008 .7 Ly
Totsl Enar gl SE
0] 1585000 LEIR dur 10725725 46 L0509
Yeols Environnament BA.
] 500,000 1.A5% dur DL/26= -1} 511,952
£ 0,0 5.59% dup 1122/ 14 TILAE
TOTAL CORMORATE BONGS & MOTES 11 376,784
TOTAL RANCE LEIMRTH
CEEMANT {11 3%]
CORPORATT BOMDS & NOTES (1LI%)
Daryer A
Em 1,500,000 BETS due DS/25,50 29 e aa?
(1] ] BO0,000 700 due 0925,/ 16 [ Sk -]
Berpeizmen 34 & Co. KGak
a1 ] taleo] 35076 due D4/215/T5 oz 103,345
Erdii Ersergie Bacdan-WusioeT bang AG
(0] 1,500,000 1.30% due 08/31/M a2 133,41
EuR 800,000 5.25% due 012384 1B 581,574
Msrck KGak
EUR 300,000 LET% due 0500,80 (=5} a0k, a2
TOEAL CORMIRATE BONDS & MOTES 208,088
TOTAL GERMANY 6,108, 055

Tha accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)

February 25, 2024
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prircipal % of Mt
Currency  Amount  Security Description At Fair Valus
FNED [NODWAE SECURITIES {SE.9%) {contiusd)
ALY {.0%)
CORPORMATE BOWCES & NOTES (0ur)
EHI Sosh
EUR 100,000 100 due DZ/1LA T OLE% Ush 9,017
Terna - Rete Elerivics Nasionasls
ER 100,000 1383 due 13/0907% oz I c
TOTAL CORPORATT BONDS & MOTES . N
TOTAL ITALY T
LLUEMBCLUIRE j0.T6)
CORPORATE BOMES & NOTES [B.2%)
‘Haltim Fingnon Lommboun A
ELA 151,000 300 due DTS AT oz 1403580
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 240,351
TOTAL LUSEMBDURG T
NETHERLANDHS {11.3%]}
CORPORATE BOMCS & NOTES [11.3%)
ELM BY for Finmenich imtemateral 5.4
L] BTT.000 1.75% dun DR/ROMEY LT ja S
Iherdrola imbernasonad I
= 1,400,000 LETH due 0128726 11 1006, 063
Kokl kot Friges land Do v WY
= L% ] 154 due 09/10/250% L3 BT 800
Stecin Holding MY
EUR 309,000 1.50% due 11312808 -1 29757
TennaT Holding By
EUR ko] LATE due 0722255 (¥ 0S5
Vollmwapen Memations | Franoe NV
a1 ] 1,300,000 L% due OB)14,2708 4 L2550
1] 1,500,000 1500 due D806f20E 7 1,508, 788
a7 ] 200,000 RN due D906 a4 240,531
TOTAL CORPMORATE BONDS & MOTES G 634
TOTAL NETHERLAND'S B30 634
PORTUGAL HLI%)
CORPORATE BOMIES & NOTES (L)
EDF - Energias ce Portgal S
Em 100,000 189% due 03/14/82 1% 90,868
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & HOTES [ET]
TOTAL FORTUGAL 90,858
PN D)
DFRPORATE BONDS & NOTES (S.%)
Recala Corp. 5.4
R 100,000 463N due D507 20 i 10,08
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 110,102
TOTAL SPAIN 16,160
SWEDEN (5.0%]
CORPORATE BONES & NOTES [T.0)
Tl Co. AR
Eum 267000 1.39% dun D5/11%1 s 8,
Yattenfall AR
GhP 500,000 1500 dur DRSS 10 547 00
Ghr 1,500,000 BN due DR1LTED 15 1,526,086
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 173.m7
TOTAL SWTDEN 2,718,007
LI T D e e (0L
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (30}
BP Capftel Markets PLC
2} 693,000 3.25% due 03/2226% 13 T2 A5
EUR TITE000 RN due D3/L2f19% L 1,300,013
Britiah Teloowmuneations PLC
Eu 200,000 LE7TH due DB/18,m00% o4 208,551
uso 1,008,000 425% due 13/23/1% E] 1,828,735
GBP 500,000 R38N due 17/20/m1 15 798 858

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 25, 2024

(Expressed in United States Dollar)

% of Nat

Currency  Amount  Security At Fair Valus
FROED INCOM T STCURMES [ML9N) {contised)
LINITED EPE0O0M (30.09) {ortinusd]
CORPORATE SONES I NOTES (30U} [onmtinund)
WEE Arnance MLD
Eum 1,002,000 LATH due DTS L% {25 589437
GBP 2ATR000 S.67% due DE/18TY 5.4 1A65450
SSE PLG
L1 7000 B20% dum D4/ 2472 7 Li LR
Gag 303,000 1790 due DL/14726T IEA ST
L1} 1L2K2.000 A0 due D1/2180% L4 LIMLESD
Vodetane Group LG
1, 1,880,000 4,178 due 0B/41 an AR B0
uin 400, L0 6.25% due 100078 or 397 560
EuA 1000 6,500 due GBI B PR ] 18061
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & MOTES 16,501,350
TOTAL UNMTED KNG D0k _ LE30180
LIS TED STATES (5.0%)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES [3.0%)
Seutthern Ca
ELR TAM000 LES% due 05/1581 a.0 FR TR o)
uso BOODO0  A00% due D1/1S/SL 10 STEANT
TOEAL CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 2,86,
TOTAL UNITED STATES LT36,TT4
TOTAL FOED INCOM £ SECLIRITIES [Cost U0 54,199,097} ELASTING
TOTAL IWVESTRIENTS {Cost LIED F6109.087) 5 D HAEST
CASH AMD OTHER ASSETS IN DXCESS OF LIANLITIES 11 25,115
MET ASSETS 1o o D 55,877,371
U Pyrparanl ooy, Maiarity date p i rep 4 [ L
Fund Luwsl Forwand Foraigm Cusrancy Exchangs Contracts
Mt Uinrealired
Notioral  Settlement Motionsl Unren Rred Unrmalired  Apprecistion)
Buy_ Courtarparty A Dwin  Sell Ap lon_{Depreciation} {Cwpracistion}
EUR  Ruyal Bank of Canada 142,545 DAF1RP024  USD {1s3,985) UsSD 566 USD - USD [
EUR  Seate Street Bank And Tt Cou L343,600 4182024  LSD (LATEET) = {18,510} {18,540]
EUR  Semtm Street Bark And Trust Co. 104,023 OAFIB034  LSD {3025y 1824 - 1524
GEF Ryl Bush of Canads 12,240 OAF1B2024  USD 15,5000 - (2} [az)
USD Aoyl Besk of Canada 15,500 (052004  GRP {12,244) 12 - 12
USE  Goidman Sachs HOESL DAAB0IE  EUR {153,985) - (&73} 73]
USD  Semte Serewt Bawk And Trut Cn TI5,111 OAFIE034  EUR {217,608) 174 - 1
USD  Sewne Sirewt Bank And Trost Co BALETO D4F1R024  EUR {210,904) 4580 - o5
USD Sure Sewt Bark And Trust Co. EUR  (35,B44447§ 531,156 - 531,158
USD  Sewte Strewt Bank And Trust Co. G457 AR D4NIBO0IL GEP (7 462 B0 a7.083 = 47083
USD  Westpec Bankdng Corporeson 147,254 DAFLIB/2024 EUR 353 - (31} {131
USD  Westpec Banking Corportion BTAISE AR08 EUR {00,000 BETE - BT
USD  Westpec Banking Conporation 0 1RP024  GRP {165, 262) 1,185 - 1,185
USE Westpec Banidng Corpoetion SOETS O4F1B/3024  PY  (TLISOTED) 11,014 - 21,04
[1:2] 70 _US0 usD
JPY Hrdgad Clams Forward Fohslpn Currency Exchanpe Contracss
Mar Unreafized
Notioral  Settlement Miational s kred Uarmlied  Appracistion)
By Courtarparty Amount Dutn  5ell Aamount  Apprecation IM w
W Royel Bask of Canidls 12,955,618 LD [ T = USD  (3ARE} USD  (3.488)
Y Roysl Besk of Cansda 18,153,517  O4/18/3004 LSO {138,347§ - 1425} (2,425)
Y Seate Serewt Bawk And Tres Co 20,309,155 D4/28/I004 LSD {133,587} - {2,288} {2,286)
Y Waeipac Banking Comporwtion LTILFEALS  OLANGDEE LD (3.08ATY = 11,380,650) 11,328,650
FY Wenpec Bankdng Corporeton 75000000 (4182004 LSD {528,504) = {13570} (23.67H)
WY W Banking Corporeon WTELHD  4SI8TI USD (7 = 11,324} 11.324]
Y Wertpac Banking Corperrion AB0454  D4/0/I004 USD 114,598) - 28} faas)
Y WA Rinking Caparstion LATEEL  O4SIAODM USD 415 = [Lad} aas)
Y Weskpac Banidng Corporwiion LA0ASE  D4/38/2004 USD 9,515} 3 - 3
Y Westpac Banking Corporwtion 10,000,000  04/28/7004 USD (B, 165) 344 = 144

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

Mt Linrealiced

Netioral  Semlement Negensl Unreallzed Usrealissd  Apprechtion/
Py Datn  Sall Aamaeant {Dap | g o}
USD  Goidman Sachs 7854 D4AMIEA Y 1LENGTYT D T {285} USD (284}
USD Aoyl Bank of Cansds 13758 040304 Y (20,188851) 1M - 1im1
USD St Sereet Bark And Trust Co. 10664 O4fIR/NEM4 PY (170953700 5557 - 5587
USD  Westpec Banking Corporstion SLILS O4/28/H04 Y (13,519,854) - [am} [asa]
WD Westpac Banking Corporstion T5bed  Oafal e Py [ X i - ] [10]]
USSP Westpac Banking Corporstion e O4IRTI0CE PY (3,930,0m% 393 = 51
USD  ‘Westpac Banking Corporstion TEO,TEA 04 AR0CM Y {115.9123%3) 449 - 449
USD  Westpac Banking Conpormtion 9,573 04283004 IPY LE0S = 14605
WED  Westpec Banking Conporartion L3408 D4IRI004 JFY  (TTL,080,000) X s - BECH

15 [1:7+] [1:+)

Currency legard
R Euro
- Brtish Pound
Y lapaness Yen
1] United States. Daliar

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “Series Trust™) Is a series trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an opan-
ended unit trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated Decemnber 16, 2016 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed®],
under thi lxws of the Chyman islands. Nikko AM Dffshore Funds was established by & master rust deed dated October 15,
2012 (the “Master Trust Deed®], under the laws of the Cayman lslands and is licensed with the Cayman islands Monetary
Authority pursuant to section 4{1Ha) of the Mutual Funds Act [2021 Revision). The Series Trust commenced operations on
February 22, 2017,

The Series Trust's assets are managed on & day-to-day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (the “Manager®). The
Manager delegates imwestmant maragement duties to Nk Assat Managament Co., Ltd, [the “Investment Mamager”].
The imeestment Manager delogates imestment management duties 1o Meuberger Berman investment Advisers LLC, [the
“Sub-imvestment Manager™). The adminlstration of the Seres Trust 1s defegated to Brown Brothers Harmman & Co. (the
“Custodizn” and “Sub-Administrater”], » Bmited parnership organized under the lvws of the Strte of New York.

The kmvestment objective of the Series Trust I to achigws a mid to long term total rgturn through Income and capital
appreciation. The Series Trust shall mainly imvest in bath investment grade and nondinvestmeent grade hybeid securities that
are |ssued by non-finandal corporate lssuers and have been rabed by elther of Moody's, SEP or Rtch. The highest rating
fram all three of these agencies shall be applied to each corporate hybrid security snd the sversge rating of the portfolio
shall be BEE-/Baad or above.

Corporate fybrid detit securities ang structungd instruments that combine both equity and fxed Income characheristics that
generaily offer 3 means for issuers w bormow meney from imestors in retum for interest payments. Such corporate issuers
may utifize hybrid debt for 3 variety of reasons, inchuding bolstering their capial levels, lowering thedr welghted average
cost of capital, diversifying thelr funding sources and managing credit ratings. Thaugh terms and conditions hava become
Increasingly standardined, the specific characteristics of each Instrumant [such as paymant conditions, the ratio of dabit and
equity-like fextures, time frames and applicable rates) can vary.

Thee Serles Trust may olso vest in fixed and Noating rete debt securities, Including bonds, ssued by governments and
government related entities

Dertvative Instrum ents will be used for eficent portfiollo management and/for nvestment purpeses, & well as for hedging.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean Interrational Bank and Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited [the "Trustee™ and the “Administrator”) is named as Trustes of the Series Trust

The Marager sppointed Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stnley Securities Co., Lid to st as Agent Company [the “Agent Company™)
and the Manager appoired Mitsublshl UF) Morgan Stankey Securities Co., Ltd to act as Distributor (the “Distributor®) of
Units In Japan or such other person of institution as may be appointed as distributor of the Sarles Trust by the Mansger
frofm tirme to tme

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust is an imvestment company that follows the sccounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Smndards Codification 946,

Use of Estimotes

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally sccepted in
e United States of America {U.5. GAAP®). The preparation of firancial smtements in sccordance with LS. GAAP reguires
the Serles Trust's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
labilties and discosures of contingent assats and Habliides at the date of the finandal stataments and the reported
amounts of rnevenwes and expéndes during the reporting period. Actual redults, including the ultmate amount realized
upon the sake af falr valued Investments, could differ from thase estimates and such differences may be sigrificant.

Basls of Accounting

Security and contractual tansactions are recorded on a trade/ontract-date basks Interest ingome ks recorded on an
effective yvield basks, net of amy applicable withholding tax |mterest expense and other expenses bre recorded on an socrual
basis. Realized galns and losses from security tramsactions are compubed cn the bask of the mverage cost of the securithes
sold or covered. Changes in the valuation of investments are recorded in the Satement of Operations a5 uwnrealined
appreciation or deprecation.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Waliwation of investments

Bonds and other debt securithes, Including restricted securlties {other than short-term obllgatiors but Including listed
o) mre Fair valued at their lst sabe price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basls of valuatons furnished by o pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Investment Manager, or i no sale
has ocourmed, the bid price on the valuation date a5 provided by brokers who are market makers In e securities. All debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturdty date, in principle shall be fair valued using an amordzed cost effected by an
affective yiald accumulated/amortization mathod to thelr maturity date with sdjustmants based on comparison with
markst prices as required.

In accordance with the authoriative guidance on fair value messurements and disclosures under LS. GAAP, the Serles
Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in @ hierarchy that pricritizes the inputs t valuation techniques used to
mgasisng the fair valug. The hierarchy ghes the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in acthe
markets for identical assets or ksbilities [Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority o valuations based upon
unobservabie Inputs that are significant o the valustion [Level 3 measurements), The guidance estmblishes three levels of
thee fair value hierarchy as follews:

*  Livvel 1 —Imparts that reflect unadjusted quoted prices In acthve mariets for ldentical investments that the Serles
Trust has the ability to sccess ot the measurement dute;

= Lgvel 2 = Inputs other than guoted prices that are significant and cbsarvable for the asset or Rabisty either
directly or Indirectly, Inchading Inputs in markets that are not considered to be acthe;

*  Livel 3= inputs that are significant and uncbservable

Imputs are used in applying the varlous valuation techniques and broadly refar to the assumptions that markat participants
e i make valustion decisions, inchuding asumptions sbout risk. Inputs may include price information, specific snd broad
credit data, liguidity statistics, snd other factors. A financlal Instrurnent’s level within the fair value hisrarchy 1s based upon
the lowest level of amy Input that b significant o the fair value meassurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable” requires significant jedgment by the Investmaent Manager. The Investment Manager conskders
obsorvable data o be market data which i readlly svailable, regularly distributed or updated, reflable and veriflable, not
proprietary, and provided by Independent sounces that ane actively imolved In the relevant market. The categorization of a
finandial instrument within the hierarchy i based upon the pricing transparency of the irstrument and does not necessarily
cormespond to the Investment Manager's perceived risk of that Instrument.

Imvestments whose values ane based on the quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore dassified within Level 1,
would Include actively traded equities, certsin LS. govermment and soversign obligations, and certaln money market
securities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such instruments, even in siturions where the
Saries Trust hald  large position and @ sale could ressorably Impact the quoted price.

Imvestrnents that trade In markets that are not considened 10 be acthee, but are valued based on quoted mariet prices,
disaler quotations o altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These inchude
Investment-grade debl securites, short-term Investments and forward forelgn curmency exchange contrects. As Level 2
Inwistments include positions that ane not tradied in active markets and/or are subject to ransher restricdons, valuathons
iy ba adusted to refect iiquidity andyor non-trarslerability, which are generally based on avallable market Information.

Imvcestments classified within Level 3 have significant unchsenvable inputs, as they would trade infrequently. Level 3
Instrumants would Include assat-batoed securites and collateralited mortgage cbilgetions. As observable prices am not
available for those securities, the Seried Trust would use valuation technigques o derve the fair value.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk assodated with Irvesting
In those securites.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Waluation of investments (continued)]

The fallowing table presents the financial Instruments Gmed on the Statement of Assets and Liabiiithes by caption and by
level within the wvaluation hierarchy as of February 9, 2024, Further diassifications of the financial imtruments are
presented Im the Portfollo of Insestments.

Assats a1 Falr Vales Failr valus at
avei 1 Loval 2 Love 3 Fabeuary 29, 2004 _
Floned hences e Sacurties s - usm 54,452,255 1] - usn S5 T5S
- g Contrachs = ] LI
Totsl usg = Lsn 55085581 WSO = U SSOESSEL
Ushi¥ties ut Falv Valoe Falr Vishue ot
Level1 Level2 Lavei3 February 23, 2024 _
Forward Foreign Currency
Excharge Contracty LFo1d] = uso 11.443,769) W50 - UsD 11443, 765]
Total uso - W0 jLassges) s — U [143,788)

During the year ended February 28, 2024, thers were nd transfers In o out of Level 3, The Seres Trusts policy is to
determing kevelling and assess all transhers 35.at 3 year end date.

Forefgn Currency Transhotion

Assets and Babifities held In currencles other than United Smites Dollar ("USD" or the “Functional Currency™) are translated
to the Functional Curréncy at tha rate of exchange prevaling at the finandlal satement date. Income and expenses are
tranglated at the rate of guchange prevalling at the date on which the income or qupense I3 incurrgd. Realfized and
unrealized gaing and losses aristing on foreign currency transactions are induded in the Strement of Operations in the
period In which they ooour.

The Series Trust does not solate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates
on Investments from the Muctuations arlsdng from changes In market prices of securithes held. Such Auctustions are
included with the net realtred and unrealized gain or loss from investments.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman lalsnds, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or ather taxes payable by
the Serles Trust In certaln jursdictions other than the Cxyman lslands, forelgn tases muy be withheld at source en
dividends and interest recedved by the Series Trust. Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions generally
will be exempt from forelgn Income or withholding tees at source. The Sarles Trust intends to conduct 1ts affalrs such that
it will not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financlal statements. Unithalder may be tived on thelr propertionate share of the Serfes Trust's tio basks Income based on
thizir indhvidiuad circumstances.

The Serles Trust follows the authorftative guldance on accounting for and disclosure of uncertalnty In tax positions
[Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASE”) - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Manager to
determing whether 2 tix pocition of the Series Trust i more Mkely than not to be sustained upon examingtion by the
applicable twxing suthority, including resclution of any related sppeals or Iitigation processes, based on the technical
marits of the position. For tax positions meeting the mare likely than not threshold, the ax benefit recognired in the
Fnanclal statements Is reduced by the largest benafit that has a greater than fifty percant Bielihood of belng reallzed upon
ultimate settiement with the relevant taxing authority, The Manager has determined that there 15 minimal or mo effect on
the financial stmterments being under this authoritative guidance.

Forword Foreign Currency Exchange Controcts

Thie Serles Trust may enter Into forwand forelgn curfency exchange contracts to hedge agalnst forelgn cumrency exchange
rate risks on all of a porton of non-USD denominated investments of for efficient portfalio management purpases. When
ertering Into @ forward forelgn cumency exchange contract, the Serles Trust agrees to recelve or deliver o fxed quantity of
foreign currency for an agresd-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts ane valued dally, and the Serles Trust's
nat aquity therain, representing unrealized appreclation/|depreclation} on the contracts as measured by the difference
batween the forward forsign curmendy exchange rates at the dates of antry into the contracts and the forward etes at the
reporting date, Is Inciuded In the Statement of Assets and Uabiities. Reslized and unrealtzed gains and losses are inchuded
n the Smtement of Operations.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchamge Controcts [continued]

These Instruments invoive market risk, credit risk, of both kinds of risks, In exoess of the amount recognized In the
Staternent of Assets and Liabilities. Risks srise from the possible imability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from movement In cumency and securites values and Interest rates. In additian to the Class level hedging.
the Serles Trust had net realized losses of USD 1,273,943 on 56 fonward forelgn currency exchange contracts during the
year with an average notioral of USD 7,572,002 and an average term to maturity of 70 days. The Saries Trust also had net
raafized losses of USD 4,736,837 on 30 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts hald at the Clas IFY Hedged lavel
during the year with an average notional of USD 5,676,215 and an average term to maturity of B4 days. The average
natisnal of the forward foreign currency exchange comtracts held for class level hedging throughoart the year i brosdly
consistent with the NAV of the JPY dass st each paint in time.

Thir assats of de Serfes Trust may ba hald in one of mare curnencles, and tha Sedes Trust will, In principle. angage in
currency hedging beteen the currency of denomination of sach Class (US. Dollar for USD Class and lapanese Yen for IFY
Class) and the currency of the imestments in the onderlying portfolio, provided, however, that such bedging for IPY Class
ey bee: prfiormad through the LS. Dallar.

Cazh ord Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all curmency held with the Custodian, end ovemnight and cther short term placements
with ather financisl institutions.

UNITS

The net assets of the Serbes Trust are divided Imto JPY Class Uniis and USD Class Units. The Units are denominated in
Japanese Yen and United States Dolfr, JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are available 1o an aligible Investor who is any
parsan, corporation or gntity which ks not (1} a citizen or resident of the US., 3 partnarship organined or éodsting In the LLS.,
©F afy COFPOTALon, trust oF other entity organized under the laws of or existing in the US; (5] a person or entity resident or
domiciled In the Cayman Islands (excleding any object of 3 charitable trust or power of Bn exempbed of non-resident
Cayman kdands company]; (i)} unable to subscribe for or hold Units without violating applicable laws, or (k) & custodian,
naminge, of trustes for ary person, corporation or entity described In [1] to (I1) abowve. Both tha JPY and USD classes share
proportionately in the gaing and losses of the Series Truss hevel Imestments. In additon, the JPY dass receives gains and
losses from the FX forwards held at the JPY Class level for hedging purposes. Refer 1o Note 1 for further detalls on the
Series Trust's cusmency hedging strategy.

The Manager may daterming to lssue one or more classes of Unlts of the Series Trust without prior notice 1o o written
consent of the Unitholder,

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Class Unlts and USD Class Units are hald by one nomines account Unitholder,

JPY Clas WS Claas Total Saris Trust
Balaracn wk February 26, 2023 USD 3543475 USD  15A0L1E3 USD  5LE35968
Subecriptions: during the year 3,384,558 9,785,058 13,169,656
Rademgaians during the yeer {6,339,188) (1,596,423) |B,585,611)
Destributions (1,240, 3596] {75479 (&035,575)
wet [decreata)fincrecns in net awsets resulting from aperations [2,334,607) 1,576,540 {358,067}
Mot Asiets at Paboudny 29, 2024 USD 15305157 USD IS TTLITS USD  550073T
Humbsr of Units I hsue 5t Febnary 28, 203 547,533 1,804,753 240,596
Units kssusd during the year 58,440 LOEL557 1,119,997
Linits redesmed during the year {124,564) [1659,650) [294,05)
Mumber of Uinits in e ot Februry 29, 204 531,704 3 55, 57D 3 TR T
Mt Aset alue per Unit st Febnaary Z9, 2004 usD 5512 USD 955
Subscriptions for Units

USD Class Units were first issued at an initial Bssue price of USD 10,00 per Uit JPY Class Units were first issued at an initial
Tssue price of JFY 10,000 per Unit. On ard after initlal closing day, the minimem Initiel subscription for USD Class Units per
subscriber & 10 Units o more, and in muftiphes of 1 Unit thereafer. The minimum Initial subscription for JPY Class Unis
par subscriber Is 1 Unit or more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter.

The Manager may walve or change the minkmum inital and additional subscription amourts set Forth above in s sale
discretion from time 1o dme.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

UNITS [continued)

Sales Chorge
In schdition o the subscription peice, the applicant shall pay a sales charge calculated at wp o 3% [exduding any tax
applicabila) of the purchase price, 1o the Distributor.

Unit Rexbemption
The Series Trust recagnizes redemptions in accordance with the suthovitathve guldance on distinguishing Nabilites from
aquity. Redemptions, whather axprassed as United States Dollar, Jepaness Yan or Units, are mecognized as liabilties when
each of the Unived States Dollar, apanese Yen and Unit amounts requested in the redermption potios becomes ficed, which
generally may ocour either 3t the tme of the recelpt of the notice, ar on the last day of o Nscal year, depentding on the
nature of the request As 3 result, redemptions pakd after the end of the year, tut based wpon year end net assets are
reflectad a5 redemptions peyable at February 29, 2024. There were USD 246,741 of redemptiors payable as ot February
29, 1024, Induded as Payable for Units redesmed In the Statemant of Assets and Liabdllties.

Repurchose of Lintty

Ench Usilthalder may reguest a rapurchase of Unlts by the Sories Trust undess repurchases have boen suspendad by the
Manager. Units will be repurchased daily st the Met Asset Value per Unit 25 ot the relevant Repurchase Day (each business
day, commencing on February 22, 2017, or such other day or days a5 tha Manager may from time to time determing In respect
of the Series Trust also a [*Valustion Day®]). There will be no repurchase charge on repurchases of Units held over five years.

Compulsony Redermation

In the vent that the Trustes or the Manager shal determine that amy Units of any class of a Serles Trust are being held by
o for the benefit of a person who s not en Efigible Irvertor for such Serfes Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust o the: Serles Trust to be required to reglster, be subject to tax of violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or If the Tnestee
or the Manager has reason 1o doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason [which may not be disclosed by the Trustee of the Marager to Unitholder) that the
Trustee or the Manager considers appropriste at (s absolute discretion having regmrd to the interests of the Unitholder aff
the relevant Class or the Unitholder of the Serles Trust as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes,
may direct the holder thereof to sell such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of
such sale, faliing which the Manager may nedecm such Unlts.

Termination of the Series Trust

Upon termination, the Manager will reallze all the assets of the Serfes Trust, and after paing out or retalning adequate
pravislon for all Rebilities properdy payable and retsining provislon for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall
distriberte the proceeds of that realization to the Unithalder proportonataly to thelr respective Interests [ the Serias Trust
s of the date of termination of the Series Trust.

Distributions to Unitholder

The Msnager may, In i3 sole discretion, declare distributions and no guarintee is made that these will ke place.
Distributions will be declared on each Distribution Record Dwte and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution
Peried b5 @ period commendng from the calendar day following the preceding Disribution Reccrd Date and ending on and
including the Distribution Record Date. The distributions will ba paid on the relmant Ditribution Payment Date, provided
that such ameunt (i any] declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units In respect of the applicable Distribution
Period shall only be paid out of the Seres Trust's et income, realized and unrealived capitsl gains and any dismibutable
fursds of the Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units a3 determined by the Manager.

Thie declaration of distributions to Unitholder reduces the Class Lewel Net Asiet Viahet per Unit withdut any corresponding
change In the rumber of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This results In a Unitholder's averall Imvestment In the Serbes
Trust being reduced. in additon, any disributions during a Distribation Perfod which are in excess of the Serles Trust's net
Increase in pet assats resulting from cperations results In @ portion of the distribution being return of caplial.

The amount of distributions, B any, will be determined by the Manager In ity sole discretion, and no regresentation or
guaramtes is made that & distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period.

Caplaination
Thi Met Assat Walue per Usk i ealeulsted for ssch Daaling Day [each Valustion Day, of such ather day or diyt b8 the

Manager may from time to tme determine in respect of the Serfes Trust), by dividing the difference In value between the
Serles Trast's assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and experses of the Series Trust] by the number of Unis
outstanding.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

UNITS [continued)

Copltairation [contimed]
The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units 1o be issued in the Series Trust shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determing and shall be without par valua.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accountng Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derhvative Instruments and hedging activithes.
It requires that the Series Trust discloss: a) how and why an entity uses derhative instremaents, b) how dervative
Instruments and related hecged ttems ane accounted for and ¢) how derivative Instruments and related hedged fems
affect an emtity's financial pesition, Anancial performance and cash Rows.

The Series Trust transacts forward derivative instruments primarily for bedging punposes with each instrument’s primany
risk expasure being fareign exchange risk. The forward forelgn currenty exchangs contracts held by the Serles Trust do not
qualify sz hedges for accounting purposes under the reguirements of ASC B15. The fir vahee of these derivative
Instrumants is included in the Sttement of Assets and Labiities with changes in fair value refiected as realized
gains;/{lasses) or net change in unrealized appreciation{depreciadon] on derivatives within the Smtement of Operstions
[Nota 2).

The Serkes Trust may enter inta an international Swaps and Derbvative Association, Inc, Master Agreement [15DA Master
Agreement®) with iz courterpartied in order o mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement 1o typically
negotiated by the Serles Trust and Ms courterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and condidons for all subsequent
derhvative transactions. The I50A Master Agreement allows for the netting of 2l amounts owed o or due from
counterparty Into a single nat paymant IFa credit event of dafailt should occur,

The Serkes Trust has elected to not offset fair value recelvables and payabdes for derhative contracts on the fece of the
Statement of Arsets and Liabiiites.

At February 29, 2024 the Serfes Trust had entered Into the fallowing dertvative assets by counterparty net of amounts
available for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (“MMNA®) and met of sny collsters] recebed by the Seres Trust:

Darhauths AZBets Darhardves Haa-cmh Cash Nt Amount of
Countarparty Subject toa MMA_ Availabie for Offsst Collaberal Recaived Colater] Recsived Darivative Assats’
Aoyal Bank of Canada usD 2,670 USD [2,570) USD [T - usD -
eate Street Bank And Trust Ca. 590, 184 [11.196) = = 368 188
‘Wertpac Basking Corponstion 40,172 (40372 - - -
Total USD E33% USD (85198 UsO - uso ~USS  semass

At February 29, 2024 the Serles Trust had entered Into the following derivative llabilittes by counterparty net of amounts
svailable for oifset under 8 MNA and net of sy collateral pledged by the Series Trust:

Met Amount of
Derbvwthve Unbilitles  Derivrtves Hon-ah Cash Dertrutive:
Counterparty Sulgject toa MMA_Avallabie for Offsst _Collsteral Fladged Collateral Pladged Limis it
Goldman Sacka uso 961 UsD - usD - s - UsD (=]
Reryal Bank of Canada 5,035 (2570 = = 3,355
Seate Strewt Bank And Trust Ca, 22,196 [z2,155) - - -
Wertgae Baniking Corporation.____ LAMGES MOITE) L 1L L
Totad [0 __iAa78 US> (6s,18) UsD = U U o
1 2 pemorent egeals She net smourst reosk bis)peys b i F -party i the wwvent of delwsl.
A Februany 29, 2034 the Serfes Trust had entered Into the following dertvatives:
Aavet Derlvtives Liabliry Cerbrrtives
Derbeathvas Seabamrnt Statmmant
ot Accounted for aa o Assats whel ol Ay and
Huidging Instruments Uabilhties Location Fair Valus Uabitins Locatan Falr Valun
Forward foreign cumency  Ureealined appreciation Unnealteed depreclrtion
mchange cortracty on forwand forelga on forward fomelgn
{CarTency k) ourrency eochange WEp 633,326  curmency exchange wso 11,843,769}

comracs oontracts
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

CERIVATIVE FINAMCIAL BSTRUMENTS {continued)
The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 19, 7024:

Changs In Linnel Bad

Location of Rpafined Appradation or

Derivatives Mot Accounted — Galn or [Less) Galn or {Loss) {Depreclation} en

fer i Hedging Irrtraments  an Darhathen on Dertvativen Derivathoes

Forveard fonelgn curmency Wit realined lossed on Torward Forelgn

echange contrects osrmency exchange contracts;

{Currency Kk change in wnrealired spprecition ush {ROA0840) WED AB0E0
‘on forward foniign curmency exchangs contracts

MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, s management fee of 8 total of [LES% per annum (D.30% per
annum in respect of fee for the Marages and the (rmeestrment Manager and 0.35% per annum [n respect of fee for the Sub-
Imvestment Manager] of the Net Asset Value sccroed on, and caloulated as at, each Valuation Day and payable monthly in
arrears. In addidon, the Manager also reimburses, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, for any expansas incurmed by Rt In
the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Master Trust Deed. During the year ended
February 25, 2024, the Manager earmed fees of USD 351,471 of which USD 23,878 13 stlll cutstanding as of February 23,
2024,

The Manager pays the fees of the investment Manager owt of its fess. The Investmaent Manager is responsible for paying
tha fees af the Sub-imvestment Manager and any of the Irvestment Manager's delogates or other parties appointed by the
Investrnent Manager to perform it functions in respect of the Sarkes Trust

CUSTODIAN AND SUPB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator recelves @ custody fee calculeted and paid monthly based on toml sssets and
ransaction valuma,

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator recebves, out of the assets of the Seres Trust, an administration fee (Inchuding
transfer agent fea) calculated based on the Net Asset Value as ot each Valuation Day ot the following annual rate:

- 0.08% up to fand Inchuding) USD 250 millon;

- 0,07% up to {amnd inchading) USD 500 milion;

= 0.06% over USD 500 milllan.

In addition to the above NAY based fee, there Is 3 transactioral based fee charged, which varies depending on the volume
of tansctons.

Such administration fie 15 payalble monthly bn ammears, and subject to the minlmum annusl fee of LUSD BO,000. In addition,
thie Custodian and Sub-Administrator also receives customary safekeepging fees and transaction charges. All out-ol-pocket
axpanses of the Custodian and Sub-Adminlstrator are borme by the Serles Trust During the year ended February 29, 2024,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator earmed fees of USD 135,358, of which USD 11,394 I stll outstanding as of February
25, 1024,

TRUSTEE FEES

Thi Trusbee retsives, cut of the 3ssets of the Sedes Trust, 3 combined fes at the rate of 0.015% per annum of the Met
Aszet Value accrued on, and caloulated o3 at, each Valuation Day and payable semb-annually In errears, subject 1o &
minimum annual fee of US0 15,000, During the year ended February 29, 2024, the Trustee earmed fees of USD 15,039, and
there was an amount of USD 21,331 st cutstanding a5 of February 258, 2024,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company receives, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, a fee ot the rate of 0LOS% per annum of the Net Asset
Value accrued on, and calculsted ms 0%, each Valuation Dey and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
Februsry 29, 2024, the Agent Comparry earned fees of USD 27,036, of which USD 12.002 ks still outssanding as of February
19, 028,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 25, 2024

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributor recetves, cut of the assets of the Sarkes Trust, & fee at the rate of 0.65% per annum of the Met Asset Value
sccrued on, end calculsted as ot, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended February 29,
2024, tha Distributor samned foes of USD 351,471, of which USD 50,776 Is st outstanding as of February 29, 2024,

Thit costs and dxpensed in connection with the establiEhment of the Seres Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the esmbiishrment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing amy prospectus of
explanatory brochures required, were estimated st lunch to amourt to approximately USD 180,000, Such costs and
expanses will be amortised within the first five (5} financial years of the Sarles Trust unless the Trustes decldes that some
pther method shall be applied, The Administrator recelves USD 1,500 per annwm for FATCA f CRS compliance senvices.

Thit Serles Trust's activities expose it 1o a variety of Arancial risks: markgt risk (including price risk, interest rata risk, and
currency risk), eredit risk and Bquldity risk.

Mgricrt Risk
All irrvestments present a risk of loss of capltal, The Irvestment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securithes and other Bnancial Ingtruments.

The Series Trust's investment management process is described In Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Series Trust's
ablity o meet s objectve of mid to long rm capital appreclation while eaming Income I dependent on tha
performance of its imestments in corporate bonds and notes. The Series Trust's overall market positions are monitored on
2 dally basis by the Serles Trust's Imvestment Manager.

Tha valug of tha Serlas Trust’s Investments s affected by a number of factors, inchuding but not limited to, changes in tha
wider economry, financial and curmency markets, forelgn curmency exchange rates, Interest rate movements and cradit
ratings af debt issuers.

The Series Trust may enter Imto foreard forelgn curmency exchange contracts which to varying degrees represent a market
ik I excess of the amount reflected on the Seres Trust's Statement of Assets and Uabllides. The potional amaunt of the
contract represents the extent of the Serles Trust’s participation in these finandial Instruments. Market risks ssociated
with Such contracts srise due 1o the possible movements in foreign exchangs rates undarlying these instrumesnts.

Ortthasr market and credit risks Include the possibility that there may ba an lliquid market for the contracts, that the change
Tn the value of the contract may not directly comrelate with changes in the value of the underdying currencies or that the
counterparty to & forward contract defaults on Itz obligation to perform under the terma of the contract. The Serles Trust's
expagure to loss due to counterparty non-perfarmance on open forward foreign currency exchange comrrects i limited to
tha unrealized appreclation inherent in such financlal Instruments which are recognized In the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities.

inberest Rate Risk

The Series Trust's exposure to changes in Interest rates relates primarily to the Series Trust's investments in debt securities
contracts. Interest rate fluctsations may also affect the falr value and pricing of dervative Instruments purchased or soid
short by the Serbes Trust. The Irmestment Manager continuously monitors the Saries Trust's exposurs to Intenest mte risk
ad this Serles Trust's overnll Irterest sensltvity on 3 ragular bashs.

Many financial Instruments used a floating rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate ["LIBORT), the offered rate at
which major International banks @n obiein wholesale, unsecured funding. LIBOR was a significant factor In determining
the Series Trust's payment obligations under & derivative investment, the cost of financing to the Series Trust or an
Inwestment’s valug of retum to the Series Trust, and was used n other ways that affected the Series Truss's invesment
performance. The United Kngdom's Financial Conduet Authority phased sut of LIBOR. Although many LIBOR rates were
phased cut by the end of 2021, a selection of widely used USD UIBOR rates continued to be publshed through June 2023 in
order to assist with the transition. The Sedes Trust was exposed o finandial Instruments ted o LIBOA to determine
paymant obligations, financing tarms, hedging strategles or Immestmant valug. The trandtion process sway from LBOR and
any increased volatility and illiquidity in markets for, 3nd reduced effectiveness of new hedges placed against, instruments
wishse Tenms priviously induded LIBDR were nol materisl to the Series Trust.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

FINAMCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Credit Risk

Crdit risk represents the potential loss that the Serles Trust would Incur if the counterparties or kssuers of debt securities
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations 1o the Seres Trst For eschange-traded comtracts, the
eschange Bcts a5 the counterparty to specfic transactions mnd, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from
counterpartes of specific positions. The Series Trust's management does not consider that credit sk related to open
derhathe contracts will have material adverss effect on the financial condition of the Series Trust.

While bath the LS. Bankruptcy Code snd the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of & failure, insabvency or iquidetion of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a faidlure of =n
Institution that has custoshy of Serles Trust assets, the Serles Trust would not incur losses due (o its assats being unavallable
for a pericd of tme, uitimately less than full recovery off its aisets, or both, Becawse all of the Series Trust's cash is in
custady with a single institution, such losses could be significant and could matertally impair the ability of the Sedes Trust
to achieve it imeestment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit rizk to the extent that this institution may be
unable o fullill Its obligations to repay BMounts cwed,

Liquidity Rk
Investors should be aware that the value of Unks might fail as well as rise, Investment In the Series Trust imohes 3 degree
of rizk, there can ba no assurance that the Serhes Trust's Investment objective will be achleved.

The Series Trust is exposed 1o daily repurchase of s Unis but management believes that the Series Trust has sefficsnt
resources to meet the presant and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, If necessary, the liquidity to fund
repurchases and achieve 3 market position appropriately reflecting @ smaller capital base, This positon s monitored
continually by managemant to endun that the Serbes Trust has the abllity to meet Fis obligations.

At Felrusry 29, 2024, substantially all the Invertmaents of the Serles Trust ware traded In the ovar-the-counter markat.

Currency Risk

Tha Serles Trust holds investmants denominated in USD, which ks the Seres Trust's functional and presentational currency.
However, the Serfes Trust expects to hedge lapanese Yen, the value of the Seres Trust's net assets attributable to JFY
Class. As @ result, the Serbes Trust will incur gaingflosses on is forward forsign currency exchange contracts which ang used
to hedge the JPY Class net assels to Japanesa Yen, and such galns/losses are fully allocated bto JPY Class. All such IPY
hedging geins/flosses have been refected In the toial returrs as presented in the Financlal Highlights and are included In
realtzed and unrealtzed galngflosses n the Statement of Cperations. Refer to Mote L for further detalls on the Serkes Trst's
currency hedging strategy. The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's curnency exposurs on a dally basks.

In tha normal course of business, the Trustes on bahalf of the Serles Trust may enter Into contracts that contaln a varlety
of representations and warranthes and which provide genaral indamnifications. Thie peneral Indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but also may cower third parties such as the Seres Trust's
Adenbnlgtrated, Auditor of restment Manager for calms related to the lervicel performed for the Seres Trast The
Trustes's MAximum expasure under 10y such 3rrangements is unknawn, 35 exposure only Brises to the exntent future deims
that have not yet ocourred are made against the Trustee. However, based on experience, the Trustee expects the risk of
loss 0o ba remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed » subsequent events review up to June 7, 2024, which = the date the Ananclal statements wers
available to be issued,

Effectiee March 1, 2024 through June 7, 2004, there wene subscriptions of USD 85,577 and there were redemptions of USD
3,180,183 in respect of Class JPY Unbts. There wene distributions of USD 248,407 in respect of Class JPY Units,

Effective March 1, 2024 through June 7, 2074, theme were subseriptions of USD 3,550,434 and there were redemptions of
LS 440,080 In respect of Class USD Units, There were distributions of LISD 254,065 in respect of Class USD Units.

Thare are no othar sigrificant ewents to report as they relate to the Seres Trust
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2023 28
NB
2023 28
54,144,248 48,950,845 7,884,513
2,116,433 340,894
432,719 432,841 69,718
145 23
1,725,004 277,846
824,086 132,736
207,936 33,492
25,812 4,158
54,283,102 8,743,379
57,887 9,324
43,659 7,032
21,820 3,515
20,104 3,238
12,386 1,995
11,454 1,845
159 26
1,266,389 203,977
12,276 1,977
1,446,134 232,929
52,836,968 8,510,450
65,809,619 10,599,955
(12,972,651) (2,089,505)
52,836,968 8,510,450
4,962,964,239
597,833 8,302
16,402,183
1,804,763 9.09 1,464
161.07
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NB
2023 28
7,677 1,540,724 248,164
174 28
1,540,898 248,192
267,047 43,013
267,047 43,013
135,028 21,749
26,751 4,309
20,542 3,309
14,998 2,416
9,997 1,610
336 54
20,242 3,260
761,988 122,733
778,910 125,459
(1,672,115) (269,328)
(354,477) (57,096)
(2,026,592) (326,423)
(2,931,164) (472,123)
(1,546,422) (249,082)
(4,477,586) (721,205)
(6,504,178) (1,047,628)
(5.725,268) (922,169)
161.07
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308,893
387,501
44,874
260,401
161.07

2023 28
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778,910 125,459
(2,026,592) (326,423)
(4,477,586) (721,205)
(5,725,268) (922,169)

(938,821) (151,216)

(574,207) (92,488)
(1,513,028) (243,703)
18,443,339 2,970,669
3,520,848 567,103
(2,894,806) (466, 266)
(2,368,183) (381,443)
16,701,198 2,690,062
9,462,902 1,524,190
43,374,066 6,986,261
52,836,968 8,510,450




NB

LLC

NB

2012 10 15

UFJ

2023

2021

28

2016 12 16

2017 22
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GAAP

946

GAAP

FASB

12
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2023 28

2023 28
48,950,845 48,950,845
207,936 207,936
49,158,781 49,158,781

2023 28
1,266,389 1,266,389
1,266,389 1,266,389

2023 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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(

FX

2022

2023

2022

2023

2023

)

28

28

28

28

28

73 3,073,240
33
78 3,497,055
)
26,817,858 16,556,208 43,374,066
18,443,339 3,520,848 21,964,187
(2,894,806)  (2,368,183)  (5,262,989)
(938,821) (574,207)  (1,513,028)
(4,992,785) (732,483)  (5,725,268)
36,434,785 16,402,183 52,836,968
333,814 1,677,663 2,011,477
308,893 387,501 696,394
(44,874) (260, 401) (305, 275)
597,833 1,804,763 2,402,596
60.94 9.09
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10.00

10,000
10

2023 28
2023 28 57,887

2017 22
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2023 28 MNA
MNA
(&

Goldman Sachs 24,142 (24,142)

Royal Bank of Canada 26,000 (26,000)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 106,098 (106,098)

Westpac Banking Corporation 51,696 (51,696)

207,936 (207,936)

2023 28 MNA
MNA
(€]

Goldman Sachs 35,201 (24,142) 11,059
Royal Bank of Canada 873,210 (26,000) 847,210
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 191,977 (106,098) 85,879
Westpac Banking Corporation 166,001 (51,696) 114,305
1,266,389 (207,936) 1,058,453

@
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207,936 (1,266,389)

2023 28

(423,815) (1,580,683)
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0.65
0.30 0.35
2023 28 267,047
28 21,820
2.5
2.5
80,000
2023 28 135,028 2023
12,386
0.015
15,000 2023 28
14,998 2023 28 20,104
0.05
2023 28 20,542 2023
11,454
0.65
2023 28 267,047 2023
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
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1970

2023 28
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LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2022 24
COVID-19
12
13
2023 16
2023 2023 16 1,450,605
403,791 338,697
2023 2023 16 2,026,933
161,250 172,839
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2023
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Saritn:

Erropdmgrd s i securRiod, o valus (oot of L0 SE, 144, 245 LIED AR A5 ES

Gk 2116453

Forsgn currandy, o valos [eoe of LED 832,715 #32.841

A vakds bor wvEment s gl 145
Aozl v bl dor Lnith cid 1,725,054

Erfpreit recavable B2&.0E5

Ureaal ned sppewcistion an fo resnd forsgn comenay eschange mortrects 20T 4

Cher agsen< 25817

Total et 54203 107
Linbiimies:

Papalsl g of Livdty et nd 57827
Asirad ditnibfor's beed LEEAY ]
Apiriagd m ahibem et leei 21530
Acsrusd trusee fees a0, 10

Agorsd custodien and sub-admini sratorsfees 1255

Az B oo Dy s s 11354

Ancryd tisg Erakion foed 159
Lirwgulied depreciation on fore srd foreign osrency exchange corérads L2656, Wy
A YU e 12376
Totel babilbies Lagh 134

Mt Appety atiributabde o Unitholdar 1250 prd ]
anabely of Net Sppets:

P oy capal usD 65,009,519
Curmul #ree fet Sbrraigl and Sitnbutian {I28TL651)
Het Assets Atributalls te Usithel der LD EEE

et Asret Value per Uni

PP Qaid P 4 967,564,339 + D97, 833 Linitd S0l aivd i) f o 8,30

L0 Clarss LISID 16,402 1A3 = L BO& 753 Lints sunsterding) 5D .03

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Iramiimant Incoma:
braeresy nat of withhobding teces of S0 7,677
tbeullanedun ratame

Teaml Irvamm anl irdoss

Expenasd:
Belanagemen fees
Datribuites’ ad ik
Custedian srdl sub-admmigrator's fees
Prof emonal fees
Agan compan s e
Truates lowi
Trander agent fees
Ausgistration faes
Other evperans

Total Evpantes

Het Invemts et Indeme

Realied gain{leries] and chargs in laad apgrwsl [ prucistion)
Aeshired goingfosses)
IRl e i AU
Fomaign curmari p trandadt ions. and Farward fons gn curmancy ecchargs dont it
Mot reaticed losses
Charge nunresi ord sppressticn Y doprecsstion)
Anstm &Nt 5 i seanTies
Foduige cur ey 1 e i oe ol Sprmand forwign (orrancy muchange contrts
Mo charge in usraslined depnecesticn
Mok realiped and change i weeslized Mooses wred deprecietion

Mt dacrascs in nat 3ssetr rapuking from cparations

UED L540, T2
174
1,540 533

267,047

ET.047

L5008

26,751

20,5437

1455

agay

EE
— . I

TEL 3=

(LETZLLS)
{54,477

{2026 583

{2931, 164)

1546432}
4477586

—_— ARATTSRA
(5. S04.L70)

usp [B.r o ma)

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Incrasss (Daoreare] in ek S vake from:

‘Oparationa:

Mgt irvesment moome

et resiiaed losees

Het chirvpe i unrealiced dopeeiation

et diraase inonet st i raiuBing Irom aperationd

Birtribution: to Unithalder:
¥t Qs
LD Das

Teewl Crerdtiong

Caphal Transseison:

briks ismped
Y Cluss [ 302893 Unars)
S0 Qs [ 337,501 Unite]

Linit g radgam ed
P Qs (LLATE Unitg)
LD aeps [ D0, 501 Uniicg)
et ircrmuan in A Eeset i reiudiing dnam capital Dranaections

Total Incrame in Net S sty
et Aprete

Bagnning of year
Ered of your

uio 1910
2,008,592}

(4,477,586
5 725, 268K

(90,821

574,207)
1.583.028)

12,443,339
3,500,848

[3094,BOEY
I, 368, 183

LE 0L 158
9,462 50T

A3, 074,066
LED SR 636060

The accompaming notes are an integral partof these finsndal satements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

MELE Corporate Hybrid Seouriges Fund (the “Serles Trust™) Is a series trust of the Midge AW Offshore Funds, an open-
anded umit bust sitshlishad by o applamentsl rus desd datad Decarnber 16, 2006 [tha "Supplamentd Trust Deed®),
under the lovws of the Cayman Edands, hido AM Offshore Fundswas established by & master trust deed dated October 18,
2012 the “Master Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Coyman ldands and is licensed with the Cayrman Hands Monetay
Authority pursuant 1o section {1 ){a) of tve Mol Funds Act (2021 Revision), The Seres Trust commenced operations on
February 23, 2087,

The Series Trust's asters are managed on @ day-wo-day badls by MNiko AN Globd Cayrman Umited (the “Manager'), The
Manager defegates imvesiment managemant duges 1o Mide Asset Management Co,, Lid, (the “Ivesment Manager”],
Tha Invesrment hManager delagates inpestment management duties 1o Neubenger Berman Imvestment Adesers LLC, [the
“sub-lrvestment Marager™], The administration of the Series Trust is delegaved 1o Brown Brothers Harman & Co, [the
“Custedkan” amd “Sub-Administrator”), & limived partnership organiped under the laws of the Seate of New York,

Tha irsestment objective of the Series Trust §s to adieve a rad tolong teern total return thrcugh incorrss and capital
spprecintion, The Seres Trust shall malnly invest in both irvestmentgrad e and non-irsesrment grade hybrid securtes that
ore isdued by non-finencial corporate isuers and have been rated by aither of Maady's, SBP o Fitch, The highest rating
from all three of these agancies shall be applied o sach corpornte ybrid security and the average racng of the portfciio
shal b BEE-/Baal or sbowve.

Cowparate hybrid debr sscurities ore stroctured insrumen s that combine both squity and fxsd incorre charse terfatics that
generaly offer a means for issuers to borow money from Investors in return for interest payments. Such corporate imusers
ey Ltiliee hybinid debt for & variety of regsons, including baltering their capital levels, lowering their waghted merage
ooet of capital, diversifiing their funding sources and managing credit ratings. Though termes and conditions hanve become
incrassingly standandized, the spedific characteristics of aadh instrument [such as payrent conditions, the ratio of debe and
equitydile features, trme frames and applicable ratesh can vany.

The Series Trust miay also imvest in fxed and floating rete debt securitles, induding bonds, sseed by govemments and
government rel ated eantities

Derivative Instruments will be usad for afficiant por dioiio mansgermeant mrdfor impeshment purposes, sswell as for he=dging.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, RrstCanibbean infermational Bank and Trust
Compary [Cayran] Urndted [the *Trustes” and the “Adedni trator™) 15 named as Trustes of the Seres Trust,

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Securltes Co., Lbd 1o act as Agent Company (the “Agent Company™)
o the Manager appointed Mitiubishi L) Morgan Stardey Securities o, Lid 1o sct as Distributer [the "Distributes”) of
Lnfts in Japan o such otihver person o instdintion as may be appointed as distributer of S Series Truss by the Manager
fren g b time,

MM ARY COF HGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

The Series Trust s an investrent company that follows the sccountig and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Standards Codi ficat om S48,

Liae of Extimotes
Tha accompaming financial statements have been prepared in accordance vith accounting principlesgenerally accepted in
the United States of America (“ULS GAAF"). The preparation of fnondal statements in accordance with LS GAAF requires
e Series Trust's management 1o make estimates and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of asses and
Eablities and disdosures of contingent assets and Habilites at the date of the financld statements and the reported
armgunts of revenues and sspenes during the repordng pericd, Actual resdts, induding the Widmate amcunt realized
upon the sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be sgnificant.

Bomis of Accounting

feaurity and contractual ransactions are recorded on & adefconract-date bass, Interest income s reconded on an
eflsctive yield basis, net of sy applicable withhalding tax, interest axpense ind cther axpendes sra recorded on an accrusl
bass Realiped gairs and | osses from security ransactons are computed on the bass of the average cost of the secusities
wid o covered, Charges in tha vauaton of imestmants ane recorded in the Statement of Operationt b untealizad
apreciaton or depredaton,
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [sentinusd)

Valuation of fnvestmen s

Bonds and other debt seamities, incloding restricted sacurities [other than short-term obligations but including listed
Fesues) are fair valued ot thair lese sale prics in the principal market in wiich seth ssturities are normally raded, on the
bass of valuations funished by a pricing senvice, wse of which has been approved by the Insestment Manager, o if no sale
et occurred, the bid price on the viuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securitas A debt
secur et with bess than 12 manths to maturity date, in principle shall be far valued using an amortized cost sffacted by an
affective yeld sccurmulated famortization method 1o their maturity date with adjsstments bassd on comparison with
mmarket prices a5 required:

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messrements and disclosres under LS SAAP, the Serfes
Trust disdeses the far value of its imeestments in 8 hierarchy that pricntizes the inputs 1o valuation techrigues used to
meaLre the fair vafue, The hierandhwy gives the highest pricity to waluations based upon unadjusted guoted prices in active
markets for identicdl assets o labilities (Level 1 memurement] and the lowsst pricdty to valustions based upon
unobservable inputs that ang sSgnificent to the valuation [Lewel 3 mesmrements). The guidance esmblishes three levels of
Hhes (e wallies bierarchy @ follows:

= Level 1 = inputs that reflect unadjusted qucted prives in active markess lor [dantical lrvestments that the Serfes
Trust has the ablity o @ocess at the meamrement date;

®  Level 3 = Inputs other than quoted prices that are: significant and cbservable for the asset or ability either
diractly or indirectly, induding Inputs in maskets that are not conaidensd oo be acthve;

= Level 3 - Inputs that are ggnlfi cant and unobisensable,

Irputs are used in apphying the various valuation echaigues and broadly reler to the ssumetons that marker participants
e ba mislos valuation deddons, induding sssumptions shaut g Inputs many include price information, pacific snd broad
eracht deta, Niguldity statatics, and ather facters, A Bnancial instrument's bevel within the Tair value herarchy fs based uwpan
the lowest bevel of any input that is ggnificant to the fair value meaarement. However, the determingtion of what
cortintes Tobservable” reguires sgnificant judgment by the Invesement Manager. The imaroment Manager comsiders
obsenvable dats to be markst data which is readily svailable, regulady distributed or updated, relisble and verifisble, not
propriemey, and provided by indapendent scurces that are actvely invalved in the rdavant market, The categcrization of a
fimancial instrurrsni within the herarchy s based upon the pricng ramparency of the instrument and does not mecessarly
oorreipand o the avedtment Manager’s parosived Aol thst instrument,

Irvestments whose values are based on the quated market prices in active markets, and therefore cassifad within Level 1,
woudd indude activaly traded equities, certain LS government and soawersign chiigations, and certain money maarkost
securitios, The insestrment Marsger would not adjust she guoted prce for such instrumants, swen in 8 tuat ons whers the
Series Trust held alage position and a sde could reascnably impact, the quoted price.

Imvesbments that brade in markets that are not consdered o be active, but are walued based on guoted market prices,
dealer quotations o altermative pricing sources supported by chservable iInputs are dlassified within Level 2, Thase include
imvestmen bgrade debt seurities, shortterm imvestments and forward foreign wmency exchange contracts. As Lewel 3
Empestren s include positions that are not raded in active mareets and/or are subiect o rardfer restictons, valuations
miay be adjested to reflect Iifqul dity andor non-transferabliity, which are generalfy based on avallable market information.

Irvestrrants dassfied within Level 3 hine sgnificant unobservable inputs, &5 they would trade infrequantly, Levsl 3
Instruments would indude sssetbadked securities and collateralized morgage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
mvalisble for those sacuritien, the Saries Trust would use valwation techni ques o derive e far value,

The inpats ar methedelogy usad for valuing sscurities sre nat recasssarly s indication of the ridk smedsted with inveting
i those securites,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinuad)

Vealvation of Invertmen iz {contin wed)

The following table présents the finandal instruments carried on the Statemant of Assets and Liabilites by caption and by
level within tha velustion hierarchy e of February 28, 1023, Futher dasificatdions of the finencd ingruments are
presanted in the Portfolic of Imvestments.

Srvats 3t Falr Valus FalrValus 2t
Lavel o2 level3 February 3, 2023
Fiuad b & Setuies T3] - LD 48,950,845 [T - [T A5 FELES
Farward Foregn Curendy
Eschange Contracts - 207,938 - 7.0
Touad =] - 50 49158 a1 [Ts] - L0 43 158, AN
Lishiieier 31 Fai Valoe Fair Wilus ot
Laval 1 Lavel2 Lavel 3 Fobruary 28, 2023
Farward Foregn Curenicy
Exchunge Contracis {1.31] - LISE L 966 389 [E:s] - [£:] LI6R A
Teaal LD - [ 1. 266,353 [ - LED 1,765 559

Curing the yeor ended February 18, 1023, there were no ransfers. in or out of Level 1 The Seres Trust's policy is to
devenmineg levalling and assess all ansfers asata yoar end date,

Foreign Currensy Translotion

Azsats and lfabilides had in aerrendes other than United States Dollar (*LA0° or the “Functional Cumency®™] are transiated
b e Functional Currency at the rase of exchange prevadling at e financial satement date. Income and expentses ore
transated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on which the income or expense is inpurred. Realized and
urreaiped gains and lodees adsing on forsgn currency transsctions: are induded in the Satement of Operations in the
period inwhich they occur.

Tha Serles Trust does not Isclate that portfon of the results of cperationsresuting from changes In forelgn exchange rates
on frestments from the Tluctuatiors arfsing fram changes in markst peices of securites held, Such fucuations are
Encluded with the met reaiized and uresalized gain or loss from invesiments.

Income Taxer

Linder tha current laws of the Cayman ilands, there are no incomes, withioldirg, capiol gains or other taass payalble by
the Series Trust bn certein jurisdictions other than the Coyman Bands, forsign Bees may be withheld at sources on
divddends and inperest received by the Serfes Trest, Capstal Zains derived by the Senes Trust in sudh jurisdictions genarally
will b exampt from foreigninoorme of withholding tames ot source. The Sefes Trust intends to condudt its affairs such that
fowil ot be subpect to incorme e B0 ey prsdiction, As 8 resuly, ne provision for intome taes has been made in the
finarcial Satemants, Unithalder may be tiacad on thair propartionata dhare of the Sanes Trest's Cax basis inoome based on
i Frdivd dusl cincurnstensas,

The Series Trust follows the suthoritaive guidamnce on acoounting for and discloaurs of uncerminty in tax poditions
{Fancia Accdunting Standards Board {*FASE") - Accounting Standards Codfication T40], whidh requires the Manager to
detarine whether & tax pesition of the Series Trust is more leely than not to be sustiined wpon sarmination by the
applicable tawing authority, induding resclution of anvy related appeals or litigation proceises, baed on the edhnical
marits of he postion, For tix positions mesting the more Fely than nat threshold, the tax banafit recogrieed in the
financial taterments is reduced by the lagest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent liksfihood of being realized upon
ultimate ssiament with the relevant taxing authority, The Manager has detenmined that there js minimal o ro effec on
the financial ststaments baing under this authon e guidsncs.

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchan ge €

Tha Serles Toust may enter into forward forsign cumency echange conracts [0 hedge sgaingt forsign camency exchange
rate riskes on all or & portion of non-LED denominaked investmenits or for efficient portfolio mansgement purposes. When
artering Into a fonward foreign ourency exchange coniract, the Seres Trust agrees to recaive of deliver a Rred quanting of
foreign currency for an sgreed-upon price onan agreed future date, These contracts are valued dally, and the Series Trust's
et aquity thereln, representing unrealized appraciaticnfidepreciation] on the conracts a6 measured by the difference
bebween the forward foreign ourency excharge rates at the dates of entry Into the contracts and the fonward rates at the
reporting date, isincluded in the Staterrent of Assets and Uabilides, Realiped and unrealized gains and losses are Included
in the Statemment of Oparations
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinuad)

Ferward Foreign Currencr Exchan ge Controcts [ con towed)]

Thess instruments imsolve maroet sk, cadit dsk, o both kinds of fisks, inoexces of the smount recognized in the
Semterent of Assets and Lsbilities Risks arfse fom the possible inability of counterparties 1o rmsan the e of their
oontracks and from movenent in currency and secarities walues and interest rates. in addiion to the Qo lewel hedging,
the Saries Truse had nat realized gains of UBD 3,073,240 on 63 forward foreign currency exchange contracts duning the year
with an average nofonal of USD 5 217,006 and an average term B0 maturity of 73 doys. The Series Trust also had net
realiped lomes of USD 3,897,065 on 31 forwerd foreign curmency exchangs contracts held ot the Oless IPY Hadged level
during the year with an aversge noSional of US0 FATT0599 and an average term to msturity of T8 days The average
nafand of the forsard foregn currency exdiange contracts hald for class level hadging throughout the yese is broady
cormstent with the NAV of the IPY dass at aach point In Hrre,

The msats of the Serfas Trust masy be held in cne or more currendes, and the Series Trust will, In principle, sgage in
sttty hedging between the currency of denomination of esch Oass (LS Dollar for USD Olass and Japaness Yen for JPY
Qass] and the curmency of the imestments in the underlying portfclio, provided, however, et such hedging for JPY Des
miy b parfarmed through tha S Dollar,

Cazh ond Foreign Currency
Carsh and for eign curmency comprises all asrency held with the Custodian, and overnight and cther short term placements
wiith other Endncial indiufons.

UNITE

Tha nest Besets of dhe Series Trust are dividad (mao BPY Oass Unics and LED Oass Urits, The Units are dencminatad in
lapanese Yen and United States Dodlar. IPY Qass: Units and LGD Oass Uniks are svallable to a0 digibl e Snvestor who is avy
parson, corporation o entity which isnot i) 8 diren o resident of the LL5, a partnership organized or exdsting in the UL,
o @y corporation, trust or cther antity crgani ted Linder the bawes of or edsting in the LS (i) & person o entity resdent or
damiciled in the Cayman tdands (exduding any chiject of & chafuabla trust or pows or 8 exempted of non-resident
Cayrran Idands company]; (i) unable to aubacribe for o hald Units without viclating applicable laws, o [iv) a custodian,
narmines, of rustes fae oy parson, corporation o sty dewdbead in ] to (i) above, Bath tha JPY and LED dasees share
proporfonately in the gains and losses of the Serdes Trust level investments, In addition, the IPY dass receives gains and
husses frorn the P forwards held 8t the IPY Qs level for hadging purposes, Refer to Mote 1 for further details on the
Sarles Teust's currancy hadging sirategy.

The Manager may debermine 1o isue one or more dasses of Units of the Series Trust without prior notice to or writben
coment of the Unitholder,

Al of the net assets atiributable to JPY Oass Units and LSD Class Undis are held by one nominee account Linfthoider,

IPY Claas LSO Clasy Tatnl Seried Trudt

Balance ot Pebeusry 2, 102 ush MBS0 USD  MLSSA20R  UtD  A3A7L08E
Sushir it 0 3 diing the yea 15,443,333 3,500,848 JL 964 18T
Rdimgtiong doring tha year (2894, 806) (2365, 883) (5. 362,963)
Destribubiora (958,821) (874,207 (1.513.028)
et docranse in net assets resulting from oparations ;l.ﬁEl? I'ES] [I!?lﬁ] !5!’152’6&!
Biet Avmets ot Febeunry B8, 2003 USD  BAIATAS U0 2R 400108 S0 SLAMGOER
Borr bt el L 3 (e o Fabeuney 39, 2002 333014 LETTEER 201L4TT
vty e during tha pesr U RG] 387.501 GG T
Uit s redaemed during the yewr JLIN.EL)] [r e E ] [305, 275}
Bomber of Unfx w iorus of Februssy 28, 2023 507033 L B04.TE3 LA0Z 596
Bhet Aot Vishoe per Linit ot February 28, 2023 usn BB LD a0

Suwbsoriptions for Units

LED Oarss Units were first issed ot an iniga iswees price of LD 10,00 per Unit JPY Class Units wera first issued ot an initial
issue price of Y 10,000 per Unit. On and after initid dosing day, the minimum inftal subscription for USD Jass Linits per
st iber i3 10 Uinits or mars, and in moltiples of 1 Unit thersafter, The ririmum initial subscription for IPY Oass Unis
per subscriber is 1 Unitor maore, and In multiples of 1 Units thereafer.

The Manager may walve o change the minimum inidal and additional subscripton amounts set forth abowe In lts sde
discration from Sme b tme
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

UNITS |contin ad)

Foles Charge
In addion to the subscrption price, the spploent shall pay a safes charge calaulabed ot up to 3% (eluding any Tas
oplicatile] of the purchase price, 1o the Dissibutor,

Linit Redemptons

The Saries Trust recognizes redempbions in acoordancs with the avthoritabive guidance on distinguishing liabdities from
aquity, Redemptions, whather expressed s United States Doller, lnapansse Yan or Units, sra recognized as liabilities when
each of the Linited States Oollar, Japamese Yen and Unitamounts requested in the redermption notice becomes fxed, which
garecdly miy octur ather & the Sme of the recsipt of the notice, o on the lest day of & fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. fs a result, redemptons pad after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflacted a8 redemptions payable at February 28, 2023, Thare weare USD 57,887 of redemplions payable as at February 18
2023, Includad as Payable for Units radesmead in the Statermant of Awmats and Uabilitex

Regurchese of Unies

Each Unithalder may reguest 3 repurchase of Units by the Sarjes Trust unbess repurchases haee been suspandad by tha
Manager, Uritswill be repurchased daly st the M Asser Value per Lint 88 1 the relevant Repurchase Day (sach business
iy, comrrandng on Feboeay 22, 2017, or mch other day o days &5 the Manager may from time o tme detenmine in regpect
of the Saries Trus dlss b ("Valuation Dey™]), Thane will bens repur chase chargs on repurchases of Urits held over fiae years,

Compudsory Redemption

I the ewent that the Trustes or the hanagér shall determine that any Units of any dass of & Serdes Trust ara baing held by
or for the bensfit of & person who i3 not o Bligible Immetor Tor such Series Trust or that such holding waould cause the
Trust or the Series Trust to be required to register, be subject o tan or wiclate e laws of any jurisdiction,, or if the Trustes
of the Manager bk reson to doubt the lagitmaoy of the souroe of monies ussd 1o fund e awbsription or purchase of
such Linits, or for whatever reason fwhich may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manoger i Unitholder) that the
Trustes o the Manager comsders sppropriate at its absclute discredon having ragerd to tha interssts of the Uritholdar of
tihe relevant Class or the Unfthofder of the Series Trust os awhole, then the Manager, after consul ation with the Trustes,
oy direct the holder thereof to sl such Unis within 10 days and prodide to the Trustes and the Manag o svderce of
sch mle, failing which the Manager may redeern such Unlts,

Teminotion of the feries Trust

Lpen tererinacion, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Serfes Trust, and after pying cut or retalning adegquaie
prosision for 2l Habliltes properly payable and retalining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall
distribate the procesdsof that realization to the Unitholder proportionataly to their respective intenests in the Series Trus
as of the date of termination of the Series Trust,

Distributions to Linith older

Tha Manager may, in it sole discration, decare disributions and no guaranies (5 made that these will ke place,
Distributicns will be dedared on asch Distribution Recoed Date and caloulated on aach Ex-Distibufon Date Distribution
Pariod is & pericd cormemencing. from the talender day following the preceding Distributfon Recond Date and ending on and
including the Distribution Record Diate, The distribution swill be paid on the rélevant Distribution Payrment Date, provided
that such amount Bl anyl declared with respect o the relevant Oass of Units in respect of the spplicable Distributon
Pariod shall ondy be paid cut of the Series Trust's net income, redized and unrealized capital gains and any distributable
fursds of the Saries Trust attributable to such Jassof Units &8 detanmrined by the Manager,

The dedaration of distributions to Unithol der reduces the Class Level Net Asset Values per Uinibwithout any comesponding
charge in the number of Class Lewed Units per Unitholder. This results in a Unithalder's owerdl investment in the Series
Trust being reduced. in addition, any distributions during a year which are In excss of the Series Trust"s netincrease in net
amsetsreallSng from operations results in a portion of the distribution baing return of capital.

The amount of distribubions, if amy, will be deterrined by the Mandger in its sole disoretion, and no represatation or
guarantes i3 made that a digtrbution wil be mada in pespact of each or any Distribution Periad,

Capitalization

Thar Met Asset Value par Unit s caloulated for each Dealing Dary (sach Valuaton Day, o suth cther day or days as the
Manager may from tme bo Sme determine In respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference In value between the
Saries Trust's assers ond llabiides (induding accrued fees and expenses of the Sedes Trusth by the number of Units
cutstanding.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

UNITS |contin ad)

Capitalizmtion [con tin ued)
The Trust Deed stipulates that the mumbar of Units to be ismeed in the Series Trust shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
derermine arvd shall be without par valus,

DERMATIVE FINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS

Acoounting Standard Codification (ASD) 815-10-50 requines disclosures about darivative instruments and hadging activities.
It roquires that the Serles Trust disclose: a) how end why a0 entity uses derivatve instruments, b} how derivative
instruments and rdated hadged items are scocamted for ad of how dervative instruments and related hedged items
alfect am entley’s Enancial positon, Enancial performance and cash flows.

The Series Trust trenscts forwerd derlvative Insgruments primarity for hedging punposes with each instrument®s primany
itk expofure bang foreign exthange rigd. The forward loreign currency exdhangs contracts hald by the Sarias Trust do not
qualify a5 hedges for acounting purposes under the requirerments of ASC 18, The far vaue of these derivative
instruments 5 induded in the Staterment of Assets ond Uabilities with changes in far valve refected o reslized
galrgf{losses) or net change in unrealized appredationfdapreciadion) on derhvatives within the Statement of Operations
{Mcite 2).

The Series Trust may enter into an intemational Sevaps and Derivative Ascociation,, Inc, Masber Agreament {150 Master
Agreemant®) with Its counterparties in order to midgate counterparty rige The 1504 Master Agresment Is typically
negotinted by the Series Trust and its counterparties, contaning the bidfateral terms and cond®tions for &l subsequent
derivative tramsactions The B0A Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed o or dee from
counterparty into a Sngle net poymient if a credit event or default showld oocur.

The S=ies Trust has dected to not offset far value recehvables and payables for derivative contracs on the face of the
Sratemnant of Assets and Liabilidies,

At Februsey 18, 2023 the Serfes Trust had entered into the Tolowing derlvative assets by counterparty net of amounts
avalgble for offest under a Master Retting Agresment | “&Aha™) and ne't of any collateral received by the Seni e Trust:

Dimrhvative Agsats Gt N th Cath ok Ampsant of
Counterpasty Sadjen to s MNA  Svailsbis her Offset Collatersl Recahved Collstersl Recaived Dertvation S sets®
Goldman facha (7] 24,147 5D [FIETFTHa] —LE0 —LEO =
Reysl Bonk of el 25,000 |25, 000) - - -
Seste Sorwet Bank And Trus Co. 106, 0 1 E06.00) - - -
Westpar Banking Conporaton S:I,i@i- 15].&%] ~ - ~
Towsd US)  AITS36 WSO usD -0 — U -

it February 28, 2023 the Serdes Trust had entered into the loll owing, derivative lsbilities by counterparty net of amounts
ovailable for of fsat under a MINA and net of amy collabersl pledgad by the Series Trust

Derbativg Mk Amount of

Lilnbvilbnie o Diervari L] h Cuiby Derkatie
[ sty Sadjact ta o MMNA  Avsilabls for Offiet Collstarsl Pladped Collsteral Madged  Lishlltiss®
=odm s Saeha 50 35708 LE0D {24, 343 0D =LED =150 L0539
Byl Bank of Canuls BT3II0 {6,000 = = 847,210
State Street Bank And Trus Co. 121,997 | B0, ) = - as.07a
Wieitpet Bankong Conpor shion 166, 008 {51, 6] = - 114,305
Teasl um [TT] 207 936} LS - usSD -USD 1058453

1 R TR L S Tl P AU OB Iy Fr o T CouSDeTpay I The svest of defimlL

At February 28, 2023 the Saries Trust had snterad into the following derivatives:
FAuset Darfvative: Linhility Darivativen

(Dbl ol Brutem it SEptEman
Mat Scccunted For ar of B iety sl ef Bidats and
fnyr-triam ek ‘Liabilkias Losation Fair Valus Lishlitie: Locstion Fair valus

Farwird Baraign currivsy  Unnbaliphd sponeciion

Lirrnilized dapreation

wechange contracts onforeard foreign onforward foreign
{Curmincy Bl turnircy dnchanpe LED W93 currency wnchangs L0 | L 266.389)
cortracks oorkrais
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

DERFVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [ ontinaad)

The affect of derivative instruments on the Satementol Operations for the year ended February 28, 2022:
Change in Unrealized

Location of ‘Raalized appmchtionor
Dbt Mot Aceounted  Guinor (Lass) Guin o {Loas) |Deprecstion) an
for 8 Hedging Indtruments o0 Derrvarthias on Darbrasthe Darbativei

Nt reslized losses on forwardinmgns
Forward fareign currinity Gurningy enchangs contr ity
wrchange contrasts change n urrgel jed déprecistion
Eu'mw.ﬁﬁt] Elwuﬂhwmvﬂmmzmum L1 ] [4Z3B15) LSD 1:.5&],5!”

The Misnagar recaives, aut of the amets of tha Saries Trust, & msndg erment fae of a total of (U655 per arnurn [0.209% per
anmurm inrespect of fee for the Manager and the vesement Manager and 0, 559 per snnum in respect of Fee for the Suly-
Imeestrment Manager) of the et Asset Valee accrued on, and caculated a5 at, each Wauation Doy and payabtde maonthly in
arears. In addition, the Manager also reimiburees, out of the assets of the Series Trust, for amy sxpenses ingermed by it in
the proper perfarmance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Mmter Trust Deed. During the year ended
Februany 28, 2033, the Manager eamned fees of USD 387047 of which LED 31,830 & sl cutstanging as of February 38,
FlirEN

Tha Manager pays the fees of the Investment Manager cut of its Fees. The nvestment Manager is responsible for paying
the fees of the Sub-Irvestrnent Manager and amy of the Imaement Manager's delegates or other parties appointed by the
Irwastrrant Manager 1o perform it Bnctions in respect of the Sanies Trust

CUSTODIAN AND SUB-ADMI NI STRATOR'S FEES

The Custedian and Sub-Admirrarster repsives 8 custody e caliulated and paid monthly based on total susets and
transaction volume,

The Custodian and Sub-fdministrator receives, out of the astets of the Series Trust, an administration fes [ndoding
tranafer agent fee] caloulated bated on the Mer Asset Vishus & ot aach Valuaton Dy at the following anmesl rate:

- (LORRup b [and including] LSE 250 million;

- QLT ¥aup b fansd including] LISDS00 million;

» DLOEG e LISES SO0 melion.

In addition to the above NAV based fer, theve is a tranmctional based fee charged, which varles depending on the volume
of transactions.

Swch drniniseration fwe is payable monthly in areacs, and subjsct o e minimom annunl fee of LSD 30,000, In additon,
the Custeddion and Sub-Adminigraer oleo recsives customany safekesping fees and ramaction dwrges Al out-of pocket
axparipes of the Cusiodian and Sub-Admintstranor are bomae by the Seres Trust, During the e ended February 28, 2023,
the Cupstoedion samed fees of USD 135,028, of which USD1 2,286 rs stil cutstanding & of February 2B, 2023,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustes recaves, out of the oty of the Series Trust, & combined fee at the rate of (L015% per annum of the Met
Asset Value acoved on, ond dodated as at, each Vauation Doy and payable semi-annuadly in amears, subject to a
minimum annocd fae of UE0 15,0000 During the yas sndad Fabrusy 28, 2023, the Trudtee aamad faesof USD 14,5998, and
there weas an amountof USE 20,104 still cutstanding as of February 28, 2023,

AGENT COMPANY 5 FEES
The Agent Company recaves, out of the apsets of the Serles Trust, a fee at the rate of 0,05% per annem of the Net At
Vaue acorued on, and calcudated as ol each Valuation Doy end payable guarterly in armears, Duning the year ended

Februany 28, 2023, the Agent Company samed fees.of LD 20,543, of which L5011 454 i5 sl cutstanding as of Febouany
28, 2003,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

CHETRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distribitor recaives, out of the assers of the Series Trust,  fee arthe rate of 0.65% per annum of the Net Aseet Value
accrued on, and calcudaned s af, each Valuation Day and payable guarterly in arrears. Curing the year ended February 28,
2023, the Distributor sarmed fees of USD 267,047, of which LISD 43,659 is still outstanding as of Februany 28, 2023,

CITHER FEES AND EXPEMIES

Tha costs and expenses In connection with the establishment of the Serles Trust and the offering of ®e Units, together
with the establishment of the Tnust, induding the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospecius or
axlanatery brochures requirad, sre astimated 1o amount B spproximataly USD 180,000, Such coste and expares vwill be
amortised within the first five (3] financal yeors of the Series Trust unless the Trustes decides that some ofher method
shal be spplied. The Administrator receives LED 1,500 per annum for FATCA f CRS complisnce sendoes,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Thr Series Trust's activisies eapocse [t to a varfery of Rnanclal riskss marker risks (indu ding price risk, interest rate risk, and
curranoy riskl, cradit risk and Bouidity rigk,

Ifarket Rizk
Al invemrrenss present o risk of loss of capital, The invesrment Manager rnodarates thit rise trough a careful mlecdon of
sencuritions arvd sther fraeeid instruments,

The Safes Trusts invesbment managermnent process is described in Mote 1. The primary determinsnt of the Sedes Trust's
ability to meet ts objective of mid to fong term capital apprecistion while eaming income is dependent on the
performance of B investmant in the Underlying Fund.

Thear Seeri o5 Toust's [ewesneent managerrnt process is desoibed in Note 1, The Serfes Trust's overall market positions ore
monitored on a dally basls by the Seres Trust's investment Manager.

The value of the Series Trust's investrmants is affectsd by & nueber of factors, including but net limited to, charges in the
wider sconodrry, finandal arsd currency markets, Toreign currency sschange rades, interest rate moverments and cradi
ratigsof debrimuers

The Series Trust may anter into forwerd forsign currency emchange contracts whith 1o warying degrees represent & market
rink in azcess of the ameunt refacted on the Series Truse's Satement of Asiers and Lisbilices The notional ameunt of the
contract represents the sxtent of the Sades Trust's partidpation in thess finsncid instruments Barket risks msociated
with such contracts arise dus to the possible movementsin foregn each ange rates underying thess imtrumens,

Oither rracket nd cradit risksindude the e bty that thase ray bae o illigsd ke for tha contracty, that the dhange
in the value of the contract may not directly corrdate with changes in the walue of the underlying cumendies o that the
counterparty 1o 8 formerd contract defedes on s cbligation to perform undar the term s of the contract, The Series Trust's
axposune ko boss due to colnterparty nonperfomanca on open forwards foraign curmency axchange contractsis limited o
the unresiized sppreciaton inherent in such finand sl instruments whith are recognized in the Staternent of Assets and
Liabili Ges.

Imterest Rote Bk

The Sari o5 Trust"s eapomure to changes ininterest rates refates primarly bo the Series Trust's invegmaents in debe securites
oontracts Inberest rate fluctustions may also affect the fair value and pricing of derivative insruments purchased or sold
short by the Series Trust, The Investrment Manager continucusly mondtors the Senies Trust's ssposure 1o Interest rate rigk
and the Series Trust's owerall Interest senggwity on a regular bass.

Cradie Rigk

redit risk represants the potential loss that the Sares Trust veould incur if the counterparties or issuers of debt ssarifes
faled wo performn pursuant 1o the terrmd of their cbigations to the Series Trust For exchange-raded contracts, the
exhange acts & the conterparty o specific ramsactions and, therefors, bears the rige of delivery to and from
counterparties of spedfic posions The Series Trust's maragement dods nat consider that credit risk related to open
derivative contracts will have material adverse effect on the Snandal condifion of the Seres Trust.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [¢ontinuwed)

Credit Rizk [continusd)

While both the LS. Bardewip toy Code and the Securities iImsesbor ﬁm:ﬁmktd!ﬂ?ﬁmk!nmumnw
in the event of a falure, insclvency or ligui dation of an institution, there is no certminty that, In the event of a fallure of an
Enstitution that has oustody of Series Trust assets, the Sedes Trust would not inour [osses due bo its assets being unavalable
for a period of tme, ulgmately less than Bl recovery of i assets, or both, Because all of the Series Trust's cash s In
ustody with & single institution, such | omes could be Sgrificant and could matevially impair the ability of the Serjas Trust
bt achéeve lts imeestment cbjective, The Series Trust Is subject to credit e to the extent that this Instutlon may be
unable bo ful il its cbiigations to repay amounts owed.

Liguioity Risk
Irgshors should be sware that the vadue of Uindes mighs Tall as well as rise. Ivestmant in the Serfes Trust involves & degres
of risk, thare can be no sssurance thet the Series Trust's investrment objective will be achieved,

Tha Serias Trust is expoted to daly repurchase of ity Lnits but managemen? baisves that the Saries Trus has ailfident
resuaces o meat the presant and foresseable neads of its busness operations and, if necesary, the liquidity to fund
repurchases and achisws 8 mirket posidon sopropristely reflecting & smaler copitdl base. This positon i3 manitred
oontinually by managemssnt (o ensure that the Serias Trust has the ability bo mest its obligations.

At February 28, 2023, substantially ol the inpestrments of the Sedes Trust were raded in the over-the-counter markes,

Currency Ris

The Series Trust holds imvestmen'ts denominated in USD, whidh is the Seres Trust's funciona and presentational cumency.
Howpver, the Series Trust expects to hedge fapanese Yen, the value of the Serfes Trust's net assets attributable to Iy
Qs As aresult, the Serfes Trust will incur galnsflcsses on its forweard forsign arrency exdhange contracts which are used
te heddge the JPY Cass net assats 1o Japanese Yen, and sxch galngflosses are fully dlecated to JPY Qs All sch JPY
hadging gains/losses have bean reflected in the total returns as presented in the Anancid Highlights and are induded in
realized and urreaired gainsflosses In the Sttement of Dperations. Aefer to Mobte 1 for further detalls on the Series Trust's

currency hedging strategy.
Tha invesrnent Manager monitors the Series Trost' s currency axposusa on a daly basis

LIBOR Replocement Risk

Mary Snandial instruments wse o may use a foating rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate [TLIBDR", the offered
rate at which major intemational barkes can cbtaln wholesale, uvnseoured fending. UBOR may be a dgnificant fackor in
detarmining the Series Trust's payment obligations under a derivative investrment, the cost of financing to the Series Trust
o an ireesrent’s value or return 1o the Serfes Trust, and may b uped In other warys that alffect the Serfes Trust's
vestment performance. The United Kingdom's. Financial Conduwct Authority announced a phase cut of LIBOR. Although
many LBOR rabes were phased cut by the end of 2024, a selection of widely used USD LIBOR rates will continue to be
published through June 2023 In order to apslst with the transifion. The Sevies Trust may be esposed to finangdal
Enstrueveenits ded to LIBOA (o determine payment chligations, Mnancrg terms, hedging stratvegies of immsiment value, The
transition process away from LIBOR might lead ko incressed valatility and Mliguidity In markets for, and reduce the
affectiveness of new hedges placed againg, instruments whom tenms cumently indude LBOR, The wdmate effect of the
LIBOR ransition procem is not expected tobe material to the Serfes Trust.

Qther Risk

On February 24, 2022, Rusda lamched o miliary irsaslon inte Ukraire, The conflicy, which s ongoing as of the date that
the financial statements were available 1o be isaued, carries dgnificant risks for & world economy that has yet o fully
recaver from the igacts of the global COWID-19 pandernde, Related impacts to geo-politcal instability, Framoal acker
wolatility, and the imposiion of ssaction, may in tum impact the entity,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Im thie normal courge of business, the Trustes on bahall of the Seres Trist rmay snbsr Mo coRMacE that conmin 3 vanaly
of represemitations snd waranti=s and wihich provide genersl indemnifications The general indernnifications apply not ooly
1o the extent such representatom and warrantes ane untmes but alse may cover thind partes such as the Seres Trust's
Adrinisrater, Audittr o hwestrant Manager Tor daims related to the sendoes performed for the Series Trust The
Trushes's mandmmum expotune under any Soch Srang ements {5 unknown, &6 xposune only aises to the estent future daims
that hianee et yat occurmed are made against the Trustes, However, based on expardence, the Trostes sxpacts the risk of
Bovss b b rermcibe,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SLBSECLIENT EVENTS

Manazament parformed & subsequeant syents radew up o Juns 16, 2023 which isthe date tha Bnand 8l sratements wene
ivadlable tobe fsued,

Effecgve March 1, 2023 theough June 16, 2023, there were subscription s of LED 1,450,605 and there were redemptons of
LEDHS03 75 in respactof Class IFY Linits, There were digributions of LSD 338 607 in respact of Cass IPY Units,

Effective March §, 2023 through June 16, 2023, there were subscriptions of S0 2,026,913 and there were redermptions of
LED 161,250 in respectof Claes LED Uni s, There were distributions of USD 172,839 in repect of Olass USD Linita,

Thare are no other SEASCENT Sncs Do raport as thind rdate 1o the Serdes Trust
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2024
110,108,110.10 17,735,113,294
55,619,631.66 8,958,654,071
54,488,478.44 8,776,459,222
3,155,427
458,729
9.65 1,554

8,171
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182,632,581,301
1,826,476,080
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2024 31
2024 2023
4,561,628 734,741 10,387,958 1,673,188
1,834,018 295,405 2,439,807 392,980
6,395,646 1,030,147 12,827,765 2,066,168
1,655,120 266,590 1,996,396 321,560
1,655,120 266,590 1,996,396 321,560
1,000,000 2024 31
2023 31
480,000 480,000 77,314 480,000 77,314
4,260,526 686,243 10,351,369 1,667,295
4,740,526 763,557 10,831,369 1,744,609
6,395,646 1,030,147 12,827,765 2,066,168
11
10 22
2024 16
129332

161.07
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2024 31
2024 2023
12,998,608 2,093,686 12,607,808 2,030,740
(12,015,683)  (1,935,366) (11,446,280)  (1,843,652)
982,925 158,320 1,161,528 187,087
(104,049) (16,759) (80,923) (13,034)
878,876 141,561 1,080,605 174,053
(219,719) (35,390) (205,315) (33,070)
659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983
659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983

11

161.07
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( )  C ) ( )

¢y > C )

480,000 77,314 9,476,079 1,526,312 9,956,079 1,603,626
875,290 140,983 875,290 140,983
480,000 77,314 10,351,369 1,667,295 10,831,369 1,744,609
659,157 106,170 659,157 106,170
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223) (6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
480,000 77,314 4,260,526 686,243 4,740,526 763,557
11
161.07
2024 31
2024 2023
659,157 106,170 875,290 140,983
98,264 15,827 80,923 13,034
219,719 35,390 205,315 33,070
5,785 932
982,925 158,320 1,161,528 187,087
58,583 9,436 222,571 35,850
9,320 1,501 (193,526) (31,171)
(27,715) (4,464) (152,898) (24,627)
(1,179) (190)
1,021,934 164,603 1,037,675 167,138
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
(6,750,000)  (1,087,223)
(5,728,066) (922,620) 1,037,675 167,138
10,387,958 1,673,188 9,431,206 1,519,084
(98,264) (15,827) (80,923) (13,034)
4,561,628 734,741 10,387,958 1,673,188
11
161.07
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2024 31
309GT
IFRS IFRS
IFRIC 2024

31 IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

IFRS 1ASB IFRIC

2024 31 4,561,628
12
12

2024 31 2023 31
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2024 2023
12,773,008 12,596,117
225,510 11,691
12,998,608 12,607,808

2024 2023
44,961 42,288
44,961 42,288

2024 2023
98,264 80,923

5,785

104,049 80,923

2024 2023
19 (219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)

2024 31 2023

2024 2023

878,876 1,080,605

130/195



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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(219,719) (205,315)
(219,719) (205,315)
25.0 19.0
2024 2023
1,710,268 1,822,476
52,370
547,206
71,380 70,125
1,834,018 2,439,807
2024 2023
214,067 158,831
230,168 194,982
991,166 1,072,268
219,719 570,315
1,655,120 1,996,396

2024
2023 31
30
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700,040 2023 461,277 2024 31 10
64 2023 42 78
2023 51
10
2024 31 2024 31
2024 31 @ ® ©
( ) ( ) ( )

1,086,979 84,395

4,907,366 409,003

2,308,193 439,668
705,026 56,062 52,370
26,078 1,948
107,407

9,141,049 991,166 52,370
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2023 31 2023 31
2023 31 a
@ O ©
¢ ¢ C
1,307,294 413,237
5,080,647 416,397
1,994,461 173,046
839,181 66,862
66,598 2,726
106,123
9,394,304 1,072,268
(a
®
(c
(d
2024 31 79,609 2023 80,000
11
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Note 2024 2033
usb Usp
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,561,628 10,387 958
Debtors T 1,834,018 2,439,807
Total Current Assets 6,395,646 12,827,765
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors 8 1,655,120 1,996,396
Total Current Uabillties 1,655,120 1,996,396
Equity
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company
Share capital (51 par valee, 1,000,000 shares
authorised, 480,000 shares issued and 480,000 480,000
outstanding at 31 March 2024 and 2023}
Retained earnings 4,260,526 10,351,365
Total Equity 4,740,526 10,831,369
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,395,646 12,827,765

The annexed nates from 1 ta 11 form an integral part of these financial statements,

These financial statements on pages 10to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue and signed an its behalf by:

y —
D Cruise
Director
16 July 2024

Company registered number: 129332
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYNMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023

ush ush
Reverue 3 12,988,608 12,607,208
Administrative expenses [12.015,683) (11 446.280)
Operating profit 982 925 1,161,528
Cther expenses 5 {104,049) {B0,923)
Profit before income tax B78,B76 1,080,605
Income tax 6 {219,719) {205,315)
Profit after income tax 659,157 875,290
Cther Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 659,157 875,290

All the Company’s operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statemeants,
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MNIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Share Retained
hoA Capital Earnings Toml
usk usp UsD
Balance at 1 April 2022 480,000 9,476,079 9,956,079
Total compre hensive incame for ) 475,290 875,290
the year
Balance at 31 March 2023 480,000 10,351,369 10,831,369
Total compre bensive income for 659,157 659,157
the year
Divicdend paid - {&, 750,000} {6, 750,000)
Balance at 31 March 2024 480,000 4,260,526 4,740,526

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax
Adjustments for
Met foreign exchange loss
Tax charge
Interest expense
Operational cash flows before movements in
working capital

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Dacrease in recenvables
Increasef (decrease] in payables
Met amounts paid to affiliate — group tax relief
Interest paid

MNet Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Financing Activities
Dividend paid to equity holders
Met Cash from Financing Activities

Met (decrease)/ increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

Note

o
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2024 2023

USD UsD
659,157 875,290
98,264 80,923
219,719 205,315

5,785

982,925 1,161,528
58,583 222,571
9,320 {193,526
[27,715) {152,398
{1,173} =
1,021,934 1,037,675
{6,750,000} 3
{6,750,000) .
{5,728,066) 1,037,675
10,387,958 9,431,206
(88,264) {80,823
4,561,628 10,387,958

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 farm an Integral part of these finarcial statements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 1 = General Information

Nikke AM Global Caymar Limited [“the Company”) is incorporated and damiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office is PO Bax 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Strest,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company curing the year were the
provision of investment advice and investment management senvices to third parties and other group
members, These non-statutory financlal statements have been prepared to ensure continued
compliance by the Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overseas Companies
Repulations,

Mote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting policies adopted are set aut below.

Basis of preparation

The Campany's financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with UK-adopted intermational
accounting standards [UK-adopted IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations applicable to companies reparting
uncer IFRS. As at 31 March 2024, the Company had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had
been issued by the Irternational Accounting Standards Board {"1ASB"} and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee {"IFRIC"). The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all perinds presented in these financial statements. IFRSs comprise accounting
stancards issued by the IASE and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the IFRIC
and its predecessor bocy,

The directors have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
staterments for the fallowing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strang and bighly
liguic balance sheet including cash reserves of 34,561,628 as at 31 March 2024 which s adequate to
cover the relatively low-cost base [after excluging sub-advisory fees which are covered by revenues).
The cirectors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with the liquid reserves and low cost
base, incicate that the Company has sufficient reserves to meet their labilities for at least 12 months
from the date of preparing these financial statements,

Based on the abowve, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Compary has adequate
resouUTCces to continue its operations for at least 12 morths from the date of these financial statements,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these accounts,

MNew accounting standards adopted
The directors ¢o not consider that any new accourting standarcs had a material impact on the
Company in the current year.

Measurement convention
The financial statements have been preparec under the historical cost convention.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the directars to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts
reported for reverues and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuously
reviewed, are based on past experience and ather factors, including expectations regarding likely
cevelopments in the future. At 21 March 2024 ard 2023 there were na material estimates or
assumptions.

Operating revenues

Operating revenues include investmant management, investment advisory ard performance fees,
Operating revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recenvable far
services provided in the normal course of business, ret of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Investment management and acvisory fees and associated charges are recognised over time when
the services concerned are rendered, Investment management and advisory fees are calculated as a
percentage of assets under maragement. Performance fees are recopnised at a point in time when
they crystallise in the period in which they become due and collectable.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are accounted for when they become payable.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax an the profit ar loss for the year comprises current anc deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
statement of comprebensive income except to the extert that it relates to items recognised directly
in aguity, in which case it is recoprisad in equity.

Current tax is the expectec tax payable or receivable or the taxable incame or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

The Company may utilise current tax credits anising on losses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differerces between the carnying
amoumnts of assets and liabilities in the statement of firarcial posiion and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of
firancial position lability methad. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable
temporary differences ard deferred tax assets are recognised to the extert that it i probable that
taxable profits will be available against which decuctible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Forcign currencies
The functional and presertational currency of the Company 15 US dollars [5).

Trarsactions in currencies other than US collars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing an
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
cdenominated in foreign currencies are retranslatac at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date,
Man-monetary assets anc liabilities carried at fair value that are denaminated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determired, Gains and losses
arising on retranslation are included In net profit or loss for the periog, except for exchange
diffarences arising an non-maonetary assets and labilities where the chanpes in falr value are
recopnised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in banks and in bard and shart-term depasits with an ariginal
maturity of three months or less and foreign currencies held by the Company. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents corsist of cash and cash equivalents as cefined abave.

Cash dividend

The Company recogrises a liability to pay a dividerd when the distribution is authorised, and the
gistribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholcers. A corresponding amounrt is recognisea directly in equity.

Financial instruments
The vast majority of the Company’s financial instruments are cash, receivables and payables which are
measured at amartised cost.

The Company has evaluated potential credit losses on all financial assets that are measured at
amartised cost. Factors considered in determining whether a default is likely or possible include
whether a payment is overdue {and the length of that period), any known deterioration in the credit
guality of a client/ caunterparty or other issues that could adversely affect a client’s/ counterparty’s
credit cuality,

For firancial assets where there is no knawn issues affecting credit guality, expected credit losses are
calculated based on the losses that are expectec to be incurred over a rollieg twelve-month period.
Given the nature of the Company's financial assets (i.e. mosthy cash at bank], there is a very low credit
risk, The Company is also considering the use of morey market funds to increase diversification and
further reduce credit risk,

Far any financial assets where the contractual payment is more than 30 days past cue, the default

position is to assume an ircrease in credit risk. Howewver, defaul levels in the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables denoted as past due as at 31 March 2024,
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

MNote 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts due for management, advisory and performance fees and
amounts due from customers and others. All accaunts receivable are repayable on demand ar within
one year. They are recorded in the balance sheet at cost, recuced by appropriate allowances far
estimated irrecaverable amaunts, and they are interest bearing.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable include amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts
due to wendors and athers. All accounts payable are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement enterad into. They are payable on demand or within one year and are
recorced on the balance sheet at cost. Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interast
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Mote 3 = Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revenue relates to the provision of investment acvice and investment management senvices and
arises in the Cayman Islands.

2024 2023
usp usD
Imvestment management and advisory foes 12,773,098 12,596,117
Performance fees 225,510 11,691
Total 12,998,608 12,607 808
Note 4 = Auditor's Remuncration
2024 2023
ush UsD
Fees payable to Company's Auditor for the audit
of the company financial statemeants 44,561 42,288
Total 44,961 42,288
Mote 5 = Other Expenses
2024 2023
usp UsD
Met foreign exchange loss a8 264 20,923
Intersst Expenss 5,785 -
Total 104,049 80,923
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 6 = Taxation

Taxes on income for the year erced 21 March 2024 were as follows:

2024 2023
usp usp
Current Tax
UK carparation tax at 25 [2023: 19%) (219,718 {205,315)
Total Current Income Tax Expense (219,719) (205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense (219,719) {205,315)

A reconciliation between the amount of tax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on

incame as reflected in continuing operations for the years ended 31 March 2024 ard 2023 is presented
b bevar;

Tax Reconciliation

Profit before taxes 278376 1,080,605
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of carparation tax in

the UK: 25% (2023: 19%%) {219,719) {205,315)
Total Income Tax Expense {219,719} {205,315)
Effective tax rate for the year 25.0% 19.0%

The Compary uses current tax credit from other entities in the Mikko Group to offset the Company's
CUFFENT TAX BXPEASE,

The amount due ta affiliates in relation to group tax relief i included as a payable in the statement of
firanclal position, nate 8. The prior year Corporation tax receivable, nate 7, and Amount payable 1o
affiliate - proup tax relief, note &, were settled during the year.

Note 7 — Debtors

2024 2023

usp usp
Accounts receivable 1,710,262 1822476
Amounts receivable from affiliates 52,370 .
Corporation tax receivable - 547 206
Accrued income and prepaid expense 71,380 70,125
Taotal 1,834,018 2,439,807
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 8 = Creditors

2024 2023

usp usp
Accrued expenses and deferred income 214,067 158 831
Accounts payvable 230,168 194 982
Amounts payable to affiliates 991,166 1072268
Amounts payable to affiliates — group tax relicf 219,719 570,315
Total 1,655,120 1,996,396

MNote 9 = Financial Risk Factors

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and receivable and payable
balances that arise from its daily operations. All cash apc cash equivalerts are carried at cost which
& consicersd to approximate to fair value cue to the shart term maturity of these financial
instruments, The main risks associated with the Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out
below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour its oblipation
principally in relation to transactions where the Company provides goods or services aon deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The directors do not believe that the Company is
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are maraged group funds ard therefore
management and peformance fees receivable are governed by its agreements with these funds. Ta
mitigate ary residual risk of these assets failing to be delivered, the directors ensure that the terms of
these agreaments in relation 1o payments of management and performance fess are adhered 1o by
mianitoring the Compary’s aged debtor analysis against the agreed service level agreaments.

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate credit history. For other
firancial assets, the Campany adopts the policy of dealing with firancial institutions and other
courterparties with high credit ratings, There are no financial assets past due and/ or impaired as at
31 March 2024 ang 2023, Trade recejvables are due at least guarterly, and are normally settled within
30 days of their due date, There are no overdue trade receivables at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard to bank cdeposits, the Companry only deposits morey with approved
counterparties on agreec terms.
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Mote 9 = Financial Risk Factors (continued)

Market risk

Market risk {or systemic risk] is defined as that risk whick 15 common to an entire class of assets ar
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply because of economic changes or other events that
impact large partians of the market. The directars do not believe that the Company 15 expased to
material market risk as the assets the Company marages are held by and for the benefit of fund
kolders through separate legal entities.

Currency risk
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabilities denominated in currencies

ather than the furctional currency of the Company will change in value due to movemants in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from cash balances and fees
receivable in various currencies.

The Company’s total exposure to currency risk arising from cash balances, payables and fees
receivable in other currencies is 700,040 [2023: 5461,277). As at 31 March 2024, had these curmancies
strergthened weakened by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been lower by
approximately $64k {2023, 542k} increased by approximately 578k {2023; 551k},

Liquidity risk and financial solvency risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The directors approach to managing this risk is to ensure that the Company has
sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, both under normal and stressed conditions.

Capital management

The Company’s capital pasition i monitared an an ongaing basis to ensure that it is adegquate. There
are ro externally iImpased capital reguirements.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
MNote 10 = Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
THEIedhIaT MaTr I Expenses (a) March 2024 [b) March 2024 {c)
usp uso usp
Mikko AM Americas, Inc. 1,086,979 84,395
Mikko AM Europe Lta, 4,907 366 409,093
Mikke AM Co., Ltd. 2,302,193 439,668
Mikko AM Asia Ltd, 705,026 56,062 52,370
Nikka AM Hong Kong 26,078 1,948
Highwater Limited 107,407 - -
Total 9,141,049 991,166 52,370
Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
Year ended 31 March 2023 Expenses (a) March 2023 {b) March 2023 {c)
usD usp usp
Mikko Al Americas, Inc, 1,307,234 413,237
Mikke AM Europe Ltd, 5,080,647 416,357
Mikko AM Co., Ltd. 1,994 461 173,046
Mikko AM Asia Ltd, 8239131 66,862
Mikko AM Hong Kong 66,598 2,726
Highwater Limitec 106,123 - -
Total 9,394,304 1,072,268 -

{a} Operating expenses paid to related parties (excluding Hiphwater Limited] are payable under
investment manapement agreements, or eguivalent, and are for fund management services,
Operating expenses paic to Highwater Limitec relate to director, company secretarial and other
services proviced by Highwater Limited to the Company.

{B) The amounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating expenses, are unsecured and will
be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given ar received. No provisions have been made for
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

{e} The amounts owed are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received.

6] Amounts payable to Nikko Asset Management Europe Ltd relating to group tax relief are not
included in the amounts outstanding in the above table but are includec in the statement of
firancial position, nate &,

The clirectors are the key management personrel of the Company, Remuneration of directors for the
year ended 31 March 2024 was 579,603 (2023; $20,000],

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Nikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Europe Ltd,, Nikko Asset Management Asia Ltd
and Mikko Asset Maragement Hong Kong are fellow subsiciaries of the Company. Highwater Limited
is controlled by incividuals who are Directors of Nikke AM Global Cayman Limited,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAMN LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Mote 11 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Company's immeciate parent is Nikko AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kinpdam. The Comparmy i a subsidiary undertaking of Sumitoma Mitsui Trust Holdings, Ine
which is the ultimate parent company in Japan.

The largest group ir which the results of the Company are consalidated is that heaced by Sumitomo

Mitsui Trust Haldings, Ire., 1-1-2 Marunauchi, Chivada-ku, Tokyo, lapan, The consolidated financial
statements of this group are available to the public kttp://www smith_ip/en/,
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FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2024 39,960,510 64 3,644
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2023 12 1,060,000,000 1,707 3,420
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2024 405
(O]
2024 173 63
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Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 29, 2024, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 29, 2024, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 7, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 12 April 2024.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

16 July 2024
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2023, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2023, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 16, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 9 June 2023. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor”s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

05 September 2023
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